
LEP - Growth Deal Management Board

Wednesday, 11th October, 2017 in Committee Room 'D' - The Henry 
Bolingbroke Room, County Hall, Preston, at 1.30 pm

Agenda

Part I (Items Publicly Available)

1. Welcome and Apologies for Absence  

2. Declarations of Interest  

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 07 June 2017  (Pages 1 - 10)

4. Matters Arising  

5. Growth Deal - 1st Interim Evaluation Report  (Pages 11 - 12)
Georgia Siora, WECD, will attend to present this item

6. Growth Deal Revised Communications Protocol  (Pages 13 - 20)
Ruth Connor and Richard Bond will attend to present this item

Part II (Private and Confidential)

7. AMRC NW Project Appraisal Report  (Pages 21 - 76)
Regeneris will attend to present this item

Part I (Items Publicly Available)

8. Broughton Bypass  (Pages 77 - 78)

9. M55 to Heyhouses Link Road update  (Pages 79 - 92)

Part II (Private & Confidential)

10. Preston Western Distributor  (Pages 93 - 134)

11. BHVA Project Update  
Alan Cavill will present an oral update



- 2 -

12. Programme and Projects Update  (Pages 135 - 148)

13. Finance Update  (Pages 149 - 156)

14. Projects requesting additional funding  

Part I (Items Publicly Available)

15. Amendments to the Core Grant Funding Agreement  (Pages 157 - 216)

16. Social Value  (Pages 217 - 220)

17. Reporting to Lancashire Enterprise Partnership Board  

18. Any Other Business  

19. Date of Next Meeting  
The next meeting will be held at 1.30pm on 06 December 2017 in Committee 
Room D (Henry Bolingbroke Room), County Hall, Preston.

The programme of meetings for 2018 is scheduled as follows:

1.30pm Wednesday 21 March – Cabinet Room C, County Hall, Preston
1.30pm Wednesday 23 May – Cabinet Room D, County Hall Preston
1.30pm Wednesday 03 October, venue tbc
1.30pm Wednesday 12 December, venue tbc



LEP - Growth Deal Management Board

Minutes of the Meeting held on Wednesday, 7th June, 2017 at 1.30 pm at 
the Cabinet Room 'B' - The Diamond Jubilee Room, County Hall, 
Preston

Present

Graham Cowley

Michael Ahern
Mick Allen
Brian Bailey
Alan Cavill

Michele Lawty-Jones
Sue Procter
Gareth Smith
Julie Whittaker

Observers
Mick Allen – Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy

In Attendance
Joanne Ainsworth, Financial Management, Lancashire County Council
John Holden-Ross, Solicitor, Lancashire County Council
Julia Johnson, Principal Lawyer, Lancashire County Council
Martin Kelly, Director of Economic Development, Lancashire County Council
Kathryn Molloy, Head of Service LEP Coordination, Lancashire County Council
Anne-Marie Parkinson, Programme Manager, Lancashire County Council
Heather Gittins, Company Services, Lancashire County Council
Holly Tween, Company Services, Lancashire County Council

1.  Welcome and Apologies for Absence

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and welcomed Mr Michael Ahern 
who would be replacing Robert Walsh (UCLan). The Committee expressed their 
thanks to Prof. Walsh for all his work. Introductions were made by all in 
attendance.

Apologies had been received from Katherine O’Connor.

2.  Declarations of Interest

Declarations of interest were received as below:

 Brian Bailey – Blackburn Town Centre Improvements
 Alan Cavill – 21st Century Conference Centre
 Julie Whittaker – Brierfield Mill
 Gareth Smith – Brierfield Mill
 Sue Procter – LCC led projects

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



2

7.  Project Update - M55 to St Annes Link Road

It was agreed that item 7 be taken first.

At this point the Committee approved that the meeting move into Part II, Private 
and Confidential to consider the items which contained exempt information 
provided in confidence as defined in the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  It was 
considered that in all the circumstances of the case the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighed the public interest in disclosing the 
information. 

Phil Barrett presented his report to the meeting.

The funding position was discussed, and it was noted that a report would go to 
Cabinet on 15 June 2017 to begin a procurement process for a bid for a National 
Productivity Investment Fund. Cabinet approval had already been granted to 
appoint consultants to put the bid together. A business case would then be taken 
to the LEP Board in September at the earliest, by which time the due diligence 
work would be completed.

Although it was accepted that some elements were unknown, the Committee felt 
concern that they had not had sight of a plan or a programme for the scheme.

The Chair requested a document setting out key milestones for each quarter up 
to the commencement of construction, to be used as a baseline to plan and 
monitor progress. It was understood that this document would be subject to 
change.

It was noted that there was currently no scheme cost estimate, which was 
expected from the developer in June. Without this, Mr Barrett felt it would be very 
difficult to create a programme. A draft programme had been previously 
circulated to a group chaired by Fylde Borough Council, but this was now out of 
date as it was based on information that had changed.

The Chair commented that highways projects were often problematic. Phil Barrett 
reflected that often these projects were required to make bids for funding and 
predict timescales with very little data and then manage issues afterwards. Often 
managing issues took longer than anticipated and may expose unexpected 
problems. It was therefore often difficult to plan as projects did not want to commit 
to a programme that may be undeliverable, or a budget that was unviable.

The Chair responded that all construction programmes are subject to change and 
it is essential to produce a project programme in order that those changes can be 
monitored and explained.

The Chair thanked Phil Barrett for providing the Committee with an update on this 
project.

Resolved:  that a project programme be provided which included the detailed 

Page 2



3

milestones focussed on the activities required to achieve the start on site

The meeting then returned to Part I of the agenda (items publically available).

3.  Minutes of the meeting held on 08 March 2017

Resolved: that the Minutes of the meeting held on 08 March 2017 are confirmed 
as an accurate record and signed by the Chair.

4.  Matters Arising

It was noted that the interim evaluation report from Warwick Economics & 
Development would be released in July and circulated to members. Georgia 
Siora, Managing Director, Warwick Economics & Development would be invited 
to the September Committee meeting.

It was noted that an update on the Lancaster HIC would be included in the 
Programme and Project Update standing item on each agenda.

Kathryn Molloy had met with Ruth Connor, Marketing Lancashire, and SKV 
regarding marketing the Growth Deal work, and SKV had agreed to take 
responsibility. The approach would be aligned with the We Are Lancashire 
proposition, coordinated with other LEP announcements, involve proactive liaison 
with local partners, and consultation with the Department for Business, Innovation 
& Skills to ensure a coordinated Lancashire approach. Based on these principles, 
it was agreed that a draft communications protocol would be developed over the 
summer to bring to the September Committee meeting.

The Committee were informed that three Skills and Employment Board projects 
were launching in September. The Food and Farming Innovation Technology 
Centre launch event would take place at Myerscough College on 07 September, 
which members were invited to attend. 

Anne-Marie Parkinson reported that she had met with Sue Procter to discuss the 
social value reporting issues.

It was agreed that the September Committee meeting would be used to receive 
the evaluation update from Warwick Economics & Development and to deal with 
Social Value and Communications matters. The October meeting would deal with 
business as usual.

Resolved:

1. That Georgia Siora, Warwick Economics & Development, be invited to the 
Committee meeting in September

2. That the draft communications protocol be presented to the Committee in 

Page 3



4

September

At this point the Committee approved that the meeting move into Part II, Private and 
Confidential to consider the items which contained exempt information provided in 
confidence as defined in the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  It was considered that in 
all the circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighed the public interest in disclosing the information. 

5.  Project Appraisal - 21st Century Conference Centre (GD3)

Alan Cavill and Gareth Smith declared an interest in relation to this item.

Imran Hashmi and Simon Hooton, Regeneris, presented their appraisal report 
and funding recommendation for the 21st Century Conference Centre project, and 
highlighted the following:

 This facility would complement other projects in the area, such as the 
Blackpool Museum project, and hotel development

 There were no substantial risks to delivery

 There was currently no large dedicated conference facility in Blackpool – 
the appraisers were satisfied that market demand existed for this facility

 The building and conference centre was owned by Blackpool Council. A 
subsidiary company of Blackpool Council also owns the Winter Gardens

 The project was recommended for approval subject to the following advice:

- That the Committee seek continued evidence of market demand 
over the construction period

- That the Committee seek periodic updates on the wider programme 
of proposed maintenance works at the Winter Gardens and the 
Blackpool museum project, to ensure commercial success

It was also highlighted that the local hotels are crucial to the success of this 
project. There are currently five hotels, four of which are privately owned and one 
which is owned by Blackpool Council. These are all in the stage of planning or 
construction. There was concern that the project may be over-dependent on 
privately owned hotels, but the Committee were assured that the hotel market 
viewed the conference centre as a good opportunity, and the hotels would be 
built regardless of the conference centre.

In response to a query whether it would be big enough to compete with other 
cities in the north west, the Committee were informed that there was an option to 
add another floor and that the Empress Ballroom next door to it was a very large 
facility. It was noted that there was a lack of modern and flexible facilities at the 
Winter Gardens site which this project would provide. Taken all together, this site 

Page 4



5

would be larger than the closest facilities in Manchester or Liverpool.

It was noted that the original allocation was £15.51m. The GDMB would reserve 
the right to approve the extra £510k if it was needed and seek the necessary 
endorsement from the LEP Board.

Both Alan Cavill and Gareth Smith left the meeting at this point. 

After discussion, it was agreed to recommend for approval funding of up to £15m 
for the 21st Century Conference Centre project, subject to the two considerations 
set out above.

Alan Cavill and Gareth Smith returned to the meeting.

Resolved:

That funding approval of up to £15m for the 21st Century Conference Centre 
project be recommended to the LEP Board at its next meeting, subject to the 
following considerations:

 That the Committee receive continued evidence of market demand over 
construction period

 That the Committee receive periodic updates on the wider programme of 
proposed maintenance works at the Winter Gardens and the Blackpool 
museum project, to ensure commercial success

6.  Project Appraisal - Blackburn Town Centre Improvements

Brian Bailey declared an interest in relation to this item.

Kirsten Hedland, Ekosgen, presented the appraisal report and funding 
recommendation for the Blackburn Town Centre Improvements project, and 
highlighted the following:

 The project was in a recognised local priority area with physical and 
employment challenges, and would directly improve the highway and 
footpath surfacing, street furniture, planting and lighting, and restoration of 
the memorial statue

 The project would support LEP employment and visitor economy goals

 The public realm works will be delivered alongside a wider £3m 
Townscape Heritage Project which recognises the need and opportunity to 
enhance heritage assets in the town centre

 The works are intended to help attract new businesses to develop an 
evening economy offer to complement the existing locality and retain 
expenditure in the area

Page 5



6

 Some businesses would need to be relocated but alternative 
accommodation would be found

 Although there was risk attached to the demand for space if demand was 
lacking, there was already appetite for the units being made available

Brian Bailey left the room at this point. 

The Committee felt the project represented a good investment and good value. It 
was agreed to recommend for approval funding of up to £200k for the Blackburn 
Town Centre Improvements project, subject to the conditions as detailed in the 
appraisal report.

Brian Bailey returned to the room.

Resolved:

That funding approval of up to £200k for the Blackburn Town Centre 
Improvements project be recommended to the LEP Board at its next meeting, 
subject to the conditions as detailed in the appraisal report.

8.  Project Update - Redevelopment of Brierfield Mill

Gareth Smith updated the Committee on the redevelopment of Brierfield Mill. 

The Committee were shown visuals of the current site and the proposed 
redevelopment.

The Committee were informed that a good deal of the space had already been 
allocated. It was noted that work was ongoing on 64 residential apartments and 
the hotel. An Artisan food company was also interested in some of the space, 
which was felt to be a good fit with the artistic ambience.

Social value was intrinsic to this project, and it was intended to help create a 
sense of community and sustainability. It was reported that already a number of 
artistic events had been arranged in the undeveloped site, which had been very 
successful.

Alongside the site was a gas chamber owned by the National Grid, and it had 
been suggested this could be kept and used as a performance space.

The Committee commented that it was very helpful to see the project site as a 
whole, and that there may be potential to link with the centre of Burnley 
masterplan, particularly around culture and arts.

Resolved: That the update be noted.

Page 6



7

9.  Programme and Projects Update Report

Anne-Marie Parkinson presented the programme update report.

It was noted that in terms of measuring performance against the Lancashire’s 
Growth Deal objective, the programme is still in its infancy in relation to realising 
outputs and outcomes, with significant reporting not to be expected until towards 
the end of the programme 2020/21. The Committee were informed that the 
programme is delivering in accordance with Lancashire’s Growth Deal agreed 
milestones and Government reporting requirements.

No queries have been raised in relation to the last claim submitted to government 
in March 2017.

The Committee considered the project summary document. It was highlighted 
that at the last meeting nine projects were marked amber or red with issues to 
resolve. Significant work had been done with project sponsors over the past 
quarter resulting in issues being resolved on 6 of these schemes.

The latest claim for the Preston City Centre Improvements project advised there 
had been overspend against the profile for Phase 2 works, and slippage to Phase 
3 delivery milestones. The change request submitted to provide the revised 
budget and milestone profile for delivery of Phase 3 had been rejected, as the 
required information had not been provided. A further change request had been 
requested; this was expected by the end of July and would include timescales. To 
reduce the risk to the programme, no Growth Deal Funding would be provided to 
the project until the business case was received and plans for the delivery of the 
scheme were considered satisfactory. 

Discussions were ongoing with the project sponsor in relation to the output 
targets for the Burnley, Hyndburn, and Pendle Growth Corridor. It was noted that 
the project sponsor was allocating additional resources to resolve the queries and 
that they were confident a solution could be reached.

Concerns were raised regarding the Preston Western Distributor, as only an 
outline business case had so far been received. It was noted that the ownership 
of this project was shared between the Growth Deal Management Board and the 
City Deal Board. It was a retained scheme, and timescales need to be sequenced 
with the Transport for Lancashire Committee and the Department for Transport. A 
report would be taken to the City Deal Board in June, after which a report would 
be brought to the Growth Deal Management Board. The business case would be 
completed later this year. It was commented that it was a very significant road 
development to take from nothing to a business case, and the design and 
planning processes had been done.

It was noted that overspend had been reported in relation to the A6 Broughton 
Bypass project. A change request would be submitted for the project to re-profile 
the spend; however, this would not affect the Growth Deal.

An update on the Lancaster HIC was included at Appendix B. 

Page 7



8

A query was raised regarding infrastructure projects in general and the need to 
ensure costs and timescales were clearly set out and monitored as, without clear 
programmes, the Committee was unable to properly support projects to mitigate 
risks. It was accepted that there would be unknown elements, but that these 
could be made clear in the plans.

It was therefore requested that programmes including estimated costs and 
timescales be presented to the Committee for the following projects:  Preston City 
Centre Improvements, Broughton Bypass, Preston Western Distributor. 

Resolved:

1) That the report be noted

2) That the Committee receive the HIC update found at Appendix B

3) That the infrastructure projects Preston City Centre Improvements, A6 
Broughton Bypass, Preston Western Distributor are requested to produce 
a project programme including estimated costs and timescales

4) That the infrastructure projects Preston City Centre Improvements and A6 
Broughton Bypass are requested to submit changes requests, reflecting 
the deadlines and  the level of information as advised by the Growth Deal 
Programme Manager

10.  Finance Update

Joanne Ainsworth presented the Committee with an update on the financial 
aspects of the Local Growth Fund. It was noted that Appendix A did not include 
Growth Deal 3 figures. The financial position for the fund was good, and projects' 
spend was increasing to bring them more in line with their profiles.

Resolved: that the report be noted

11.  Projects requesting additional funding

No additional funding requests had been received.

The meeting then returned to Part I of the agenda (items publicly available)

12.  Reporting to Lancashire Enterprise Partnership Board

Resolved:

That the two recommended Projects listed below be presented to the LEP Board 
for approval on the 29th June 2017:

Page 8



9

1) 21st Century Conference Centre – Funding recommendation

2) Blackburn Town Centre Improvements – Funding recommendation

13.  Any Other Business

There was no other business.

14.  Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting of the Growth Deal Management Board was scheduled for 
1.30pm on 06 September 2017 in Cabinet Room B – The Diamond Jubilee 
Room, County Hall, Preston.

Page 9



Page 10



LEP – Sub Committee

LEP - Growth Deal Management Board

Private and Confidential: NO 

Wednesday, 11 October 2017

Growth Deal - 1st Interim Evaluation Report

Report Author: Anne-Marie Parkinson, anne-marie.parkinson@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

Warwick Economics & Development (WECD) will attend to present their 1st Interim 
Evaluation Report of the Growth Deal Programme.

The 1st Interim Evaluation Report document was previously circulated to GDMB 
members on the 14th August 2017, to allow the contents to be considered prior to the 
presentation at this meeting of the GDMB. This would allow for a comprehensive 
discussion / feedback to WECD to inform the direction of the delivery of the evaluation 
programme going forward. 

Recommendation

The Board are invited to receive, consider and comment on the presentation, and the 
1st Interim Evaluation Report previously circulated.

Background and Advice 

At the Growth Deal Management Board held on 06 September 2016, Warwick
Economics & Development (WECD), appointed to undertake the evaluation of the
Growth Deal programme, presented their approach to the delivery of the Growth Deal 
Evaluation Contract.

The 1st Interim Evaluation Report was circulated to members of the Growth Deal 
Management Board by email on 14th August 2017. The Growth Deal Management 
Board are invited to comment on the report and the presentation given today by 
WECD. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



Page 12



LEP – Sub Committee

LEP - Growth Deal Management Board

Private and Confidential: NO

Wednesday, 11 October 2017

Growth Deal Revised Communications Protocol
Appendix 'A' refers

Report Author: Kathryn Molloy, Tel: 01772 538790, kathryn.molloy@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

At the June meeting of the Growth Deal Management Board it was agreed that a 
revised draft Communications Protocol for the Growth Deal Programme would be 
developed. The revised protocol would focus on ensuring that the communications 
and publicity of Growth Deal investments was aligned to the wider 'We are 
Lancashire' economic narrative.

This would ensure that a step-change in the way the Growth Deal programme and 
individual investments are communicated as a key enabler of wider economic 
growth and regeneration in Lancashire rather than as a piecemeal project by project 
approach. This will ensure real value is added to the Growth Deal proposition and 
the wider Northern Powerhouse agenda.

It has also been agreed that SKV Communications, who are responsible for 
delivering the LEP's strategic communications activity under the guidance of the 
Chief Executive of Marketing Lancashire, also manage the communication of the 
LEP's Growth Deal programme.

The revised Communications Protocol for Lancashire's Growth Deal Programme is 
attached at Appendix A.

Recommendation

The Growth Deal Management Board is asked to:

1) Consider and approve the revised Communications Protocol for 
Lancashire's Growth Deal Programme.

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



Page 14



Appendix A

Lancashire Growth Deal
Communications Protocol – October 2017

Overview

This Lancashire Growth Deal Communications Protocol has been developed to assist partners and 
stakeholders to proactively and effectively communicate key messages relating to Lancashire's 
£320M Growth Deal programme.

The Communications Protocol focuses on two aspects. Firstly, it provides partners and stakeholders 
with an understanding of the protocols which the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership (LEP) has agreed 
to adhere to with government in the promotion of Lancashire's £320M Growth Deal and as part of 
the wider agenda of promoting the government's Northern Powerhouse initiative. Secondly, it 
provides partners with an agreed protocol for promoting individual Growth Deal schemes.

Promoting the Lancashire Growth Deal and the Northern Powerhouse Initiative

In November 2016, the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership became one of the first LEPs to become a 
partner in the Government's Northern Powerhouse Partner Programme.

In signing up to be a Partner, government has encouraged partners to use key messages as part of 
any promotional activity. These are as follows:

 The government is committed to building a Northern Powerhouse to help the great cities, 
towns and rural communities of the North pool their strengths and take on the world.

 The government is taking a coherent and targeted approach to building the North's 
economy, focusing on tackling the major barriers to productivity facing the region – skills, 
enterprise, connectivity and trade.

 The government is backing business growth right across the North, and giving our great 
cities the power and resources they need to reach their huge untapped potential.

 Building a Northern Powerhouse is about boosting the local economy by investing in skills, 
innovation, transport and culture. The government will devolve significant powers and 
budgets to directly elected mayors to ensure decisions on the North are made by the North.

 The government is committed to fuelling local economies by encouraging investment, 
improving transport, boosting skills and creating new jobs. The Prime Minister appointed a 
dedicated Northern Powerhouse Minister to work with colleagues across the whole of 
government to make the North a driving force in the UK economy.

 The whole machinery of government will push on with plans to build an economy that works 
for everyone. The government wants to get all of our great cities firing on all cylinders. The 
Northern Powerhouse forms part of our modern Industrial Strategy which will build upon 
our string economy and help businesses up and down the country seize the opportunities 
presented by Leaving the EU.

Page 15



Appendix A

Building the Northern Powerhouse is also focussed on generating momentum across five key pillars:
 Connectivity and Transport;
 Education and Skills;
 Enterprise and Innovation;
 Trade and Investment; and
 Quality of Life

Growth Deals

To date the government has awarded £3.4 billion in Growth Deals in the Northern Powerhouse. This 
is providing targeted financial support to locally-determined projects in order to unlock growth and 
give local people the powers and tools they need to drive forward growth for their areas.

Lancashire has received £320M in Growth Deal funding to date which has been allocated to 44 
projects across the County. The Lancashire Growth Deal is focussed around the following four 
themes:

 Releasing Growth Potential; 
 Renewal of Blackpool;
 Growing the local Skills and Business Base; and 
 Innovation and Manufacturing Excellence.

Partner Support

The Northern Powerhouse Partner Programme is open to businesses, institutions and organisations 
with a presence in the region who want to become advocates and pledge support.

Government is actively working with partners to maximise Northern Powerhouse promotional 
opportunities by collaborating and speaking with one voice to tell a powerful story about the North.

A range of brand assets have been created for partners with content including partner badges, brand 
guidelines, an extensive image library and press release templates. 

Communications Channels

Government is using a range of channels to communicate the Northern Powerhouse initiative, 
including major investment programmes such as Growth Deal.

These include:
 Digital;
 Media;
 Visits; and
 Events

However, there is also a focus on driving the Northern Powerhouse forward through:
 Increased brand awareness;
 Embedding the Northern Powerhouse narrative in key messages, statistics and in business 

plans and strategies; and
 Joined up communications. 

Page 16



Appendix A

Delivering a Lancashire Communications Protocol 

The Lancashire Growth Deal is a £320M programme, secured by the Lancashire Enterprise 
Partnership from Government. 

Local Growth Fund resources will fund a wide range of high-profile capital projects across the 
county, all of which aim to realise Lancashire's potential for economic growth.

All Growth Deal projects have leveraged public and private sector investment by way of local 
contributions and in the delivery of jobs, housing and economic growth. 

The Growth Deal is managed as a whole programme by the LEP. This necessitates interaction 
between the funding secured and the outputs and outcomes generated by individual projects and 
the programme as a whole. 

As communications is a fundamental part of this ‘whole programme’ approach it is important to 
ensure: 

 Strategic and consistent messages about the significance of the Growth Deal are managed 
and communicated effectively; 

 The Growth Deal is consistently referenced as a Lancashire-wide initiative;   
 The LEP is referenced for its role in securing funding and overseeing the implementation of 

the Growth Deal programme; and
 Recognition of the investment made by Government through the allocation of Local 

Growth Fund resources to Lancashire.

Individual partners should communicate these points whenever they are involved in any 
communications linked to any individual Growth Deal projects.

Approach/Governance

As of July 2107, the LEP’s appointed Media and Communications Agency, SKV, will lead on the 
overarching strategic Growth Deal communications strategy to ensure it aligns with the wider 
Lancashire economic narrative. Updates will be supplied by SKV to the Growth Deal Management 
Board regarding the overarching communication activity for the Growth Deal programme. This will 
be supported by local partner reporting. 

Partners will still lead on communications for their own projects locally, and should share their 
proposed PR approach and any draft press releases in advance with SKV to ensure there is 
consistency and no duplication. 

Media handling

Reactive:
 SKV, on behalf of the LEP, will manage all generic reactive media enquiries about 

Lancashire’s overarching Growth Deal programme, informing and working with relevant 
partner organisations' communications teams as and when appropriate. 

 Where there is a specific point relating to an individual project at a local level the media 
enquiry should be directed to and handled by the appropriate partner in the first instance, 
liaising with SKV if deemed appropriate.  

Page 17



Appendix A

Proactive: 
 SKV will create the first draft of any proactive media releases relating to Lancashire’s 

Growth Deal programme as a whole, and will seek approval from local partners as 
appropriate. 

 Individual partners will continue to produce proactive media releases relating to their own 
projects for local audiences, and share these with SKV to review prior to being issued.

 Projects which are considered to be of national or regional importance, SKV will liaise with 
the relevant local partner to ensure appropriate and consistent strategic messaging is 
reflected in any media releases.

Growth Deal Programme - description and key messages

All proactive releases should include the following boilerplate within notes to editors. This copy, or 
parts of it, can also be included in the body of any press release to describe the wider context of the 
Growth Deal programme and its key messages:

BOILERPLATE: About Lancashire’s Growth Deal Programme 

In the last three years the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership (LEP) has successfully secured £320m of 
Growth Deal investment from the Government's Local Growth Fund.

This funding, one of the largest Growth Deal settlements to be allocated to a LEP, is designed to help 
improve and upgrade existing commercial infrastructure, kickstart new economic initiatives, and 
unlock additional private investment to drive further growth across the county.

Over 40 projects have directly benefitted from the LEP’s Growth Deal Programme. These include:

 New and improved transport connections including the Blackburn-Bolton Rail Corridor; the 
Broughton Bypass; the Centenary Way Viaduct; and the Hyndburn-Burnley-Pendle Growth 
Corridor;

 World-class higher education, research and vocational skills provision and facilities including 
UCLan’s flagship Engineering and Innovation Centre; the national Energy HQ in Blackpool; 
Lancaster’s Health Innovation Campus; and Myerscough College’s Food & Farming 
Innovation Centre;

 A wide-ranging package of regeneration programmes specifically for Blackpool including a 
new international conference centre at the Winter Gardens complex; the development of 
Blackpool town centre ‘Green Corridors’; traffic management, bridge and road 
improvements and an extension of Blackpool’s tram network.

The Growth Deal programme will help to generate up to 11,000 new jobs, create 3,900 new homes 
and attract £1.2 billion of additional public and private investment for Lancashire.

Lancashire’s Growth Deal programme is also fully aligned to other major economic initiatives such as 
the £450m Preston, South Ribble and Lancashire City Deal, the £20m Growing Places Investment 
Fund, and the Lancashire Advanced Manufacturing and Energy Enterprise Zone Cluster.

For more information visit www.lancashirelep.co.uk 

Page 18

http://www.lancashirelep.co.uk/


Appendix A

Media Spokespeople

On issues relating to the overarching Growth Deal Programme a LEP spokesperson should be quoted 
and/or be put forward for interview. 

Individual partners should continue to nominate their own spokespersons to comment on specific 
projects at a local level and are encouraged to seek a supportive quote from the LEP for press 
releases when appropriate. 

Branding

Recognising that individual projects are also funded by project sponsors themselves and via other 
contributions, a co-branding approach will be adopted whereby all signage and other material 
produced for individual projects will feature the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership & Northern 
Powerhouse logo.

The logo (*to be hyperlinked*) should be placed alongside that of the project sponsor and other 
funders and should be of equal scale and prominence. 

If required, a selection of different logo styles/sizes can be made available on request to ensure the 
branding in prominent and legible.

If it is not possible to display the logo on materials or are there are space and size restrictions, a text 
reference indicating the support received should be used as follows:

This project is part-funded via the Lancashire Growth Deal.

Public Information

Individual partners will retain responsibility for engagement at a local level for their own projects.

Lancashire Growth Deal Communication Contacts

For any queries or questions about Growth Deal communications, or any aspect of Growth Deal 
media and PR protocols, please contact SKV Communications on 0161 838 7770.

Email contacts:

richard.bond@skvcommunications.co.uk

jason.grimsley@skvcommunications.co.uk 

NB. If the issue is considered to be of high importance please also ensure you copy in the LEP’s lead 
on media and communications activity;

Ruth Connor, Chief Executive OF Marketing Lancashire: ruth@marketinglancashire.com 

and 

Kathryn Molloy, Head of LEP Co-ordination: Kathryn.molloy@lancashire.gov.uk

Growth Deal Programme Evaluation & Reporting 

Local partner PR activity linked to Growth Deal projects need to be fed into a Communications 
Update Report which will be presented to the Growth Deal Management Board on a six-monthly 
basis. 

Page 19

mailto:richard.bond@skvcommunications.co.uk
mailto:jason.grimsley@skvcommunications.co.uk
mailto:ruth@marketinglancashire.com
mailto:Kathryn.molloy@lancashire.gov.uk


Appendix A

Local partner communication teams are asked to continue to briefly summarise any Growth Deal 
related PR activity undertaken in the previous quarter, and any known future PR 
milestones/opportunities. 

Growth Deal Programme Communications Protocol Summary

 SKV will be responsible for overarching Growth Deal external PR activity on a regional and 
national basis on behalf of the LEP from July 2017.

 Local partners will continue to be responsible for all Growth Deal project PR on a local 
level.

 Local partners are required to liaise with SKV in advance of issuing any local press releases 
to ensure wider LEP/Growth Deal messages are included when appropriate.

 Local partners will be required to nominate a local spokesperson for local Growth Deal PR 
activity, but a LEP spokesperson may also be nominated/sourced by SKV in addition when 
appropriate.

 Local partners are required to include the updated boiler plate (see above) on all Growth 
Deal related press release notes to editors, and use Growth Deal and LEP descriptors/key 
messages from within the boiler plate text in press release body copy when appropriate.  

 When branding is required on any Growth Deal communications collateral, partners are 
required to use the LEP/Northern Powerhouse logo block as supplied.  

 Local partners will be asked to submit a brief six-monthly summary of past, present and 
future PR activity in advance of the quarterly Growth Deal Implementation board meeting.

 Local partners are encouraged to engage with SKV, and share any ideas or highlight any 
issues, in advance of undertaking any Growth Deal related PR activity to see where SKV/the 
LEP can add-value to, or support, the local project’s PR.  

Page 20



Document is Restricted

Page 21

Agenda Item 7





Document is Restricted

Page 25





Document is Restricted

Page 73





LEP – Sub Committee

LEP - Growth Deal Management Board

Private and Confidential: No

Wednesday, 11 October 2017

Broughton Bypass

Report Author: Sue Procter, Tel: 01772 538848, Sue.Procter@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

Broughton Bypass is the first major new road build delivered as part of the Preston, 
South Ribble and Lancashire City Deal. It will provide critical relief to the A6 corridor, 
Broughton village and other villages in the northern parishes of Preston.

This new road will support housing sites to create over 1,400 new homes, as well as 
enabling full development of new and future employment sites in East Preston 
creating over 5,000 new jobs.

The Broughton Bypass was opened by Jake Berry MP on 5th October 2017.

Recommendation

The Growth Deal Management Board is asked to note the report.

Background and Advice 

Broughton Bypass has been an aspirational road scheme for the area for a number 
of years and planning permission was first granted in 2001, this was renewed in 
2008. A further renewal was applied for in July 2013 and following objections to 
Compulsory Purchase Orders needed to construct the bypass, a public inquiry was 
held in Preston in April 2015 to consider the scheme. In July 2015 the Secretary of 
State confirmed the Orders finally giving Lancashire County Council the approval to 
purchase the land needed for the scheme. 

The delivery of the scheme has been subject to a full tender process with Hochtieff 
(UK) Construction Ltd appointed in November 2015 as the contractor to build the 
bypass. Design, project management and supervision has been provided by 
Lancashire County Council.

Page 77

Agenda Item 8



Construction of the bypass started in January 2016 with practical completion 
achieved on 4th October 2017. The new road was officially opened by Jake Berry MP 
and Cllr Driver CBE, Leader of Lancashire County Council on 5th October 2017. The 
road has been named James Towers Way, after a local hero, Private James Towers 
VC who was awarded the Victoria Cross for his actions on 6th October 1918.

During the construction of the road both Hochtieff UK and LCC have been in regular 
contact with the Parish Council, St John's Church and Broughton Primary School, all 
significant neighbours to the development. The development has included the 
provision of a much needed car park for the school and the church, being one of the 
first elements completed.

Hochtieff UK have worked with the school to enhance an existing pond within the 
school grounds building a viewing platform for the children. An ecologist has spent 
time with the children teaching them about the local habitat and encouraging them to 
take part in pond dipping, where the children have identified the many different 
creatures living in the pond. In addition the contractor has donated over 60 tree 
boxes to the school to help in the creation of an orchard for future generations to 
enjoy.
Hochtief have also worked with UCLAN and their 1st year Civil Engineering students 
arranging regular site visits and educational talks on the delivery aspects of the 
project. In addition the contractor has worked with Preston College to employ two full 
time construction apprentices who have developed through this experience.

The Growth Deal Management Board will be aware that this project has been subject 
to a number of issues over the last 18 months and it has been necessary to extend 
the length of the delivery programme and increase the funding allocation for the 
project. All increased funding has been agreed and provided through the City Deal 
Executive and Scrutiny Board, with no further implications for the GDMB.

It had been anticipated that the road would be opened by February 2018. This has 
now been brought forward to October 2017. This has been achieved due to Hochtieff 
(UK) maintaining a high level of resource on site, flexible programme management 
and a period of relatively stable weather. 

Following the opening of the bypass, works will be started on the improvements 
along the A6 Garstang Road helping create a more village environment along this 
corridor. Work is underway to finalise this design, working with the Parish Council, St 
John's Church and other local groups and interested parties. The main works are 
expected to start in April 2018 subject to completing the necessary procurement 
exercise, with some earlier drainage works, weight and speed restrictions being put 
in place shortly  after the opening of James Towers Way.

Page 78



Lancashire Enterprise Partnership Limited  

Private and Confidential: No

Wednesday, 11 October 2017

Growth Deal Progress Report

Appendices A, B & C refer
(Appendix C to follow)

Report Author: Neil Stevens, 01772 534057, Neil.Stevens@lancashire.gov.uk 

Executive Summary

This report provides the Growth Deal Management Board with an update on the 
M55 Heyhouses Link Road proposal.

Recommendation

The Board is asked to note the report

Background and Advice 

M55 Heyhouses Link Road

1. The aim of the proposed M55 Heyhouses Link Road is to ensure the provision of 
the necessary local infrastructure required to support housing growth and the 
growth of the wider Blackpool and Fylde Coast economy.  It is a scheme that the 
county council has promoted for many years and has sought to identify 
opportunities that support its accelerated delivery when compared to the phasing 
of the road's delivery approved through the local planning process. 

2. The county council is working with the developer, Fylde borough council and 
other parties to resolve the financial, technical and legal challenges that have 
and continue to occur in bringing a viable scheme forward.

3. At its meeting in July 2017, the county council's Cabinet authorised officers to 
commence a procurement exercise for the link road on the basis that no 
contractual commitment would be made until all of the funding considered 
necessary for the project has been secured.

At its meeting in August 2017, the county council's Cabinet approved 
arrangements for the construction of the M55 Heyhouses link road, authorised 
the allocation of £1.7 million to support its accelerated delivery, noted that as 
scheme promoter the county council would be bearing the financial risk should 

Page 79

Agenda Item 9



outturn costs exceed the value of contributions received and agreed to receive a 
further report in due course to consider a scheme proposal.   

The funding arrangements to deliver the Link Road are set out at Appendix A.

As indicated above, and notwithstanding the financial contributions that may be 
secured to part fund the link road, the county council will be responsible for its 
delivery and bear the financial risk of any cost increases above an approved 
scheme estimate which would be identified through a further report to the county 
council's Cabinet in due course.  A risk log has been established and maintained 
for the project and has informed the current scheme estimate.  Risks are being 
monitored and mitigation measures are being put in place as appropriate.  The 
value of risk will be kept under review as risks and their value can change.  The 
risk log and summary is attached at Appendix B.

4. A risk workshop was undertaken on the 6th September 2017.  The outcome of 
the workshop will assist in refining the risk log and informing the estimated total 
project cost.  Risk monitoring and mitigation will be a key feature of the project 
for its whole duration. 

The risk log references the risk of clawback of the LEP contribution as a result of 
delay in housing delivery.  If this risk is not managed by others, there is a risk 
that the county council as scheme promoter will be required to return the LEP 
contribution and make an additional financial contribution accordingly.  The 
matter will form part of a further report to Cabinet.

5. Fylde borough council has submitted a bid for marginal viability funding of £3.81 
million to the Homes and Communities Agency's Housing Infrastructure Funding 
initiative.  The bid if successful would address the current gap in funding. 

6. The estimated scheme cost has increased as a result of a being better informed 
with regard to scheme risk, but also due to progress on the detail design.  The 
present scheme estimate is £25.3m of which approximately £5.5m is quantified 
risk. 

7. The county council continues to work closely with the developer and the 
developers design consultants with regard to scheme progress and estimated 
costs.  Currently, elements of the drainage design is being completed and other 
minor drawing changes being progressed by the consultant, with the 
documentation being reviewed by the county council.  The Environment Agency 
(EA) is progressing a review of the submitted information to support the receipt 
of the required EA consents. 

8. County council officers met with representatives of Highways England (HE) on 
the 20th September as a precursor to HE undertaking a value management 
workshop.  The purpose of the meeting was to ensure that all necessary 
evidence that is being finalised does satisfy their technical requirements.  
Highways England indicated that they expect agreement to fund the bid at the 
Investment Board in early November.

Page 80



9. A scheme 'milestones' chart is updated on a regular basis by the county council 
as new information becomes available.  The current chart (Appendix C – to be 
circulated separately) is based upon the procurement process, necessary 
agreements and all funding being in place by April 2018.  This would enable an 
award of contract at the end of May 2018.  The chart indicates works 
commencement in July 2018 and a construction period estimated to be 30 
months.  County council officers will work with an appointed contractor to explore 
opportunities to minimise the construction period.  The chart remains subject to 
change, for example discussions with BT are ongoing regarding prospective 
diversions which could influence the currently anticipated delivery period and 
scheme cost.

Page 81



Page 82



Appendix A
Table of funding contributors to deliver the M55 Heyhouses Link Road 

Funding Source Estimate

(£)

Note Developer / 

Public
Kensington 
Developments Ltd

£7m Kensington Developments is to make a 
contribution of up to £7m to the project 
conditional upon contributions coming 
forward from other funding partners and the 
finalisation of terms and subsequent draw 
down of loan facilities from the HCA which 
would fund the contribution. See note 1 
below

Developer

Former Gov. offices 
(mixed use) 

£0.25m Located south of Wildings Lane. These 
funds to be used to finance the delivery of 
sustainable transport infrastructure 
including footpaths, cycle ways and 
bridleways directly relating to the 
development including works associated 
with the M55 to Heyhouses Link Road 
Scheme.  See note 2 below

Developer

(s106)

Valentines Kennels
(53 dwellings)

£ 0.226m Located on Wildings lane. To provide or 
facilitate the provision of the proposed 
Heyhouses Link Road.  See note 2 below.

Developer

(s106)

Lancashire County 
Council (LCC)

£1.7 m Approved August 2017 Public

Fylde Borough 
Council (FBC)

£1 m Approved July 2016 Public

Lancashire 
Enterprise 
Partnership (LEP)

£1.98 m Conditional allocation, funding decision 
anticipated in April 2018

Public

Highways England 
Growth and Housing 
Fund

£4.78 m Funding decision anticipated in November 
2017
(Note, this is Gap funding)

Public

National Productivity 
investment Fund DfT 
(NPIF)

£5 m Funding decision anticipated in December 
2017

Public

Housing Investment 
Fund Initiative
(Fylde BC)

£ 3.81 Funding decision anticipated in early 2018. Public

Current Scheme 
Estimate 

£25.3 m Subject to ongoing analysis and following a risk workshop 
on the 6th September 2017

Notes:

1. The Kensington Developments Ltd financial contribution excludes other requirements such as 
the East-West link road and Queensway signalised junction plus other junction changes and 
public transport contributions.

2. A number of s106 contributions have been secured, linked to buildout triggers being exceeded 
to make those funds available.  These funds could reduce the overall public funding requirement.  
As there is uncertainty of when the funds may become available, at this stage they have not 
been included in the contributions calculation.

Page 83



Page 84



M55 Heyhouses Link Road Risk Assessment Guildeline (RAG)    (24 August 2017)
KEY:

Likelihood Risk Score High Threat

Very High 5 5 10 15 20 25 Medium Threat

High 4 4 8 12 16 20 Low Threat

Medium 3 3 6 9 12 15

Low 2 2 4 6 8 10

Very Low 1 1 2 3 4 5

1 2 3 4 5

Very Low Low Medium High Very High

Impact

Risk Initial Risk Impact Mitigation Mitigated  Risk
Risk ID Date Description Probability/Impact Cost Impact Programme Impact Owner

Action
Action/Mitigation/Progress Probability Cost Time

1 24th Aug Delays in agreeing solution with HE and Blackpool on
gantrie/signing and its funding 10 £ 140,000 Delays start Update programme, additional requirements 

2 Delays in receiving the consents for structures 2 Delays start Update programme 

3 Delays in receiving consents from EA 2 Delays start Update programme and limit project delays

4 Delays in varying planning conditions  as a result of reaching
agreement with EA current working restrictions 9

Delays start, changes project
duration, influences

construction approach
Update programme and limit project delays

5 Delays in availability of specialist items (pre-cast structures) 6 £ 50,000
None if ordered in advance,

potential delays during
construction

Use another supplier (premium attached)

6 Delays in awarding tender result in estimated unit costs
being out of date 6 £ 250,000 Delays start Update programme and limit project delays

7 24th Aug Further changs to the drainage strategy on southern section
of link road 8 £ 200,000 Could delay completion Update programme

8 24th Aug Electric costs (diversions/protection) exceed paid informal
Kensington discussions 20 £ 220,000 Possible start/during

construction delays
Further mitigation required, possible update of

programme (44% contingincy)

9 24th Aug BT costs exceed the paid (C3 Budget Cost) C4 Detail Cost 25 £ 616,000 Possible start/during
construction delays

Further mitigation required, possible update of
programme (15% contingincy)

10 Agreements with utilities delays programme 10 Delays could impact on start Update programme and limit project delays

11 24th Aug Delivery of utility diversions/protection results in programme
delays 12 £ 100,000 Possible start/during

construction delays
Update programme and limit project delays, abortive

works

12

Delivery of new road section within the constrained existing
highway boundary (width, utilities, poor ground conditions,

excavating below water table), results in additional
time/materials/plant/change in construction approach

25 £ 100,000 Delays could impact on
programme

Increased cost of delivering new section of road,
update programme

13 Working constraints on Whitehills roundabout 12
Influences management on

the local network and
possible delays to deliveries

during peaks

14
Moss sluice and branch drain, significant working constraints

(width, utilities, poor ground conditions, excavation below
water table)

16 £ 60,000 Some construction delays
due to abortive works

20% increase in cost to mitigate (exclude structure
costs)

P
age 85



15 13th July Influence of drainage on  ground water protection zones 3 £ 40,000 None Additional materials required and the use of a lining

16 Ground settlement takes longer than anticipated 3 Delays programme and road
construction Programme to be adjusted 

17 Surcharge requires additional materials 9 £ 200,000 Delays as a result of the
need for additional materials 5% increase in materials and compaction

18 26th
Sept

Agreements required with adjacent land owners to satisfy
access requirements, over sailing, or specific requirements

for NATS
12 £ 500,000 if known in advance, no

programme delay Alternative construction method required

19 Poor weather conditions results in project delays 12
Influences construction
assume 3 month overall

project delay
Assumed 3 month delay

20 Poor weather conditions results in greater materials on haul
road 20 £ 40,000 Limited programme delay

until haul road is usable 20% increase in materials

21
Poor weather conditions requires additional water pumping
or increases duration of water pumping or modifications to

watercourse diversions
15 £ 100,000

Poor weather could slow
down construction and incur

programme delays

Use of additional pumping equipment or for extended
period of time

22
Poor ground conditions requires additional temporary haul
roads to deliver structures, additional equipment, plant or

materials, as well as hire additional plant
16 £ 250,000

Poor weather could slow
down construction and incur

programme delays

Construct additional, haul road, use additional
materials and plant 

23 Imported materials cannot be provided by nearest quarry 9 £ 180,000 No programme impact if
known in advance 5% premium of imported materials

24 Imported material cannot be provided at rate required
resulting in delay 9 £ 60,000 Construction delays Assumed a 3month project delay

25 Excavated earth (with additives) is not suitable for reuse 6 £ 1,000,000
Some programme delay as

additional handling is
required  and requires

Kensington support

Addition 25% of materials need to be imported and
compacted. Unsuitable earth to be removed and

usable on the Kensington site

26 Safety audits require additional work 4 £ 100,000 Post construction Additional road markings, signing and other minor
changes

27 Low performance of (sub contractors) 4 £ 100,000 Some programme  delay responsibility of main contractor, additional
contractors or replace.

28 Further accommodation works required 4 £ 250,000 Could delay start of
construction Fencing, car parking, drainage, temporary ponds 

29 Further design required during contract 4 £ 25,000 None, if known in advance have design consultants available when required

30 Part 1 claims exceeding budget 2 £ 162,500 Post construction ensure full consideration is given to dwellings
impacted on

31 13th July Delay in EA approval 5
Could delay in securing funds

and subsequently project
start

32 18th July Local highway changes as a result of road reclassification 8 £ 170,000 None, for link road
construction

Deliver necessary changes to corridor, prior to road
reclassification

33 24th Aug Additional works to satisfy consents 6 £ 570,000 uplift structures costs by 44%

34 25th July
 Business cases for funds are not successful. Risk of

clawback of the LEP contribution as a result of delay in
housing delivery. 

10 Not apportioned at this stage The project does not proceed as planned until other
funding sources are secured

Outcome of the Risk Assessment Workshop (implications and further discussion required, with those responsible)

35 HCA funding decision will influence the HE gap funding. (HE
capped at £5m); risk if one fails both fail Dave Wild

P
age 86



36 Funding timetable not adhered to; lose funding Neil Stevens

37 Funding gap met by LCC - risks not accurately managed 

38 Delay due to poor communication between project
stakeholders Neil Stevens

39 Delay due to discharging of planning conditions. (eg
restricted working times, ecological constraints) Neil Stevens

40 Additional land take may be required to construct the
scheme 

41 Proximity of the scheme to fracking sites and the potential
impact of protester action LCC Comms

42 Environment Agency - Permanent discharge consents not
approved (1 of 3 made)

Query if the EA have been consulted on outline
proposals to date. 

43 Environment agency - Temporary discharge consents not
approved Contractor

44 Accommodation works scope not defined Paul Freeman

45 Part 1 claims not quantified Paul Freeman

46 Unidentified land ownership eg Anna's Road private or
adopted Peter Liversidge

see 18

47 Confidence in the works information WA
LCC

48 New signs can't be accommodated on the  existing M55
gantries John Gatheral

49 Minimum bridleway specifications are not met by the current
design

Ros Paulson
Paul Freeman

50 Bridleway user groups object to changes in bridleways Ros Paulson

51 Diversion of bridleways not following correct legal order Ros Paulson
Paul Freeman

52 Temp closures of PROW - 6 week notice Contractor

53 Uncontrolled crossing - bridleways users might object Ros Paulson
Paul Freeman

54 Protection of NATS services - can the current design be built Peter Liversidge

55 Sound mound may be impractical to build and impact NATS/
airfield Peter Liversidge

Consultation required

P
age 87



56 Haul road methodology not included in the existing mitigation
/ habitat assessments Neil Stevens

57 NATS sensitivity - access/communications/power/private
supplies Peter Liversidge

58 Chainage 200 to 353 - Footway runs off on to private land WA

59 Opportunity - Scope to reduce with of North Houses Lane
and Wild Lane to 3m (reducing whole life cost liability)

Peter Liversidge
& Neil Stephens

60 Drainage design and future maintenance - options to be
finalised, currently with LCC for reivew. John Gatheral 

61 Programme risk on utility diversions Neil Stephens/
Contractor

62 Maintaining access to adjacent land and properties during
construction Contractor

63 Programme time for predicted settlement to occur and level
of confidence WA

Settlement has been modelled and that predicted
period added into proposed programme.  Predicted
rates to be included within WI. WA to advise of
confidence levels within the model and therefore risk
of exceeding predicitons and potential delay

64 Imported fill volume and impact on the wider road network of
deliveries Neil Stephens

65 Suitability of site won materials for reuse. WA

66 Increased earthworks/groundworks scope WA

67 Condition of the existing Wild Lane Peter Liversidge
Has the section to be incorporated into the works
been assessed for condition? Does it have to be
reconstructed/ can it be reused? Will it be suitable for
NMU use?

68 Archaeology risk Peter Liversidge
Suggestion - could this archaeology be dealt with in
advance of construction to mitigate risk of delay?

69 Statutory undertaker diversions and methodology agreement WA
C4 estimates being sought for BT - what about other
services. What has been discussed about restrictions
to working methods, if anything?

70 Ecological mitigation conditions need discharging in
advance; residual issued to be clearly included within WI

Peter Liversidge
& WA

71 Existing Ecological surveys have a finite life - 2 to 3 years -
risk of missing a new survey within season Neil Stevens

72 Risk of delay due to protected species (breeding birds/water
voles/bats)

Neil
Stevens(with
advice from S
Manchester)

73
Restriction on working times and areas - any changes may
require an updated habitat regs assessment & may impact

programme
WA

Ensure restriction clear within WI

74 May be timing restrictions on sluice / drainage works (fish,
spawning etc.) WA

Confirm with EA/ advice from S Manchester

P
age 88



75 Permitted development rights will not apply where SPA
(Ribble Estuary) birds or feeding areas are affected. WA/ PL

Is there likely to be any requirement to seek
amendments to planning that would normally fall
under PD? Highlight and review with planners now. 

76 Accuracy of service locations Peter Liversidge
/WA

Provide confidence and confirmation for design (trial
holes, GPR surveys etc)

77 Accuracy of BoQ's for tendering WA

78 2m+ dig out - methodology for excavation support/utilities
interface/high water levels/adjacent land WA 

Outline proposal to confirm feasibility of design. 

79 Formal adoption of footway cycleway will determine who will
maintain it and to what standard Paul Freeman

80 Time line of getting asset handed over Paul Binks LCC

81 Have whole life cost been considered in current design Neil Stevens

82 Has access to structures / interceptors etc. been provided for
maintenance

WA (PF during
check)

83 Exceptional weather event Neil Stevens

84 Maintenance costs Neil Stevens/
Paul Binks

Risk Totals

Risk (low) £ 2,547,500

Risk (medium) £ 1,450,000

Risk (high) £ 1,486,000

Total risks £ 5,483,500

P
age 89



P
age 90



ID Task

Mode

Task Name Duration Start Finish % 

Comp.

Milestone: Yes 2508d 28%

1 Planning permission 
secretary of State

240 days Thu 01/09/11 Wed 01/08/12 100%

3 Fylde Borough agree finance1 day Mon 03/08/15 Mon 03/08/15 100%

8 Approval HCA-Kensington 113 days? Mon 03/04/17 Wed 06/09/17 75%

10 WA Detail design and 
contract documentation 
completed 

188 days Tue 07/02/17 Thu 26/10/17 72%

11 Risk Assessment Workshop1 day Wed 06/09/17 Wed 06/09/17 70%

14 Post Design agreement 49 days Fri 27/10/17 Wed 03/01/18 0%

15 Submit Cabinet report 
Lancashire CC finance 

20 days Fri 02/06/17 Wed 26/07/17 100%

16 Produce SOBC case for 
HE and LEP

7.8 days Mon 03/04/17 Mon 30/10/17 76%

18 WSP HE Independent Assurance 10 days Mon 30/10/17 Mon 13/11/17 0%

19 HE Value Management 
Workshop 

1.15 days Mon 06/11/17 Tue 07/11/17 0%

20 HIF funding submission 20 days Fri 01/09/17 Thu 28/09/17 0%

21 Funding Approval HE 21 days Fri 18/08/17 Tue 28/11/17 25%

22 submission NPIF 16 days Fri 09/06/17 Fri 30/06/17 100%

23 HIF funding Approval 44 days Fri 01/12/17 Wed 31/01/18 0%

24 NPIF approval 32 days Thu 16/11/17 Fri 29/12/17 0%

25 Scheme Funding 
Approval LCC 

49 days Mon 08/01/18 Thu 15/03/18 0%

26 Atkins Independent 
Assurance 

13 days Mon 19/03/18 Wed 04/04/18 0%

27 Funding TFL approval 1 day Wed 04/04/18 Wed 04/04/18 0%

28 Approval from LEP 1 day Tue 24/04/18 Tue 24/04/18 0%

29 Growth Deal approval 14 days Wed 25/04/18 Mon 14/05/18 0%

37 Prepare PQQ 11 days Fri 15/09/17 Fri 29/09/17 100%

38 specification BoQ contract
docs 

20 days Fri 29/09/17 Thu 26/10/17 5%

39 Review and OJEU 40 days Fri 27/10/17 Thu 21/12/17 0%

40 Tender & pre award meeting60 days Fri 22/12/17 Thu 15/03/18 0%

41 Stakeholder signoff & 
award contract

40 days Thu 05/04/18 Wed 30/05/18 0%

42 Mobilise 40 days Thu 31/05/18 Wed 25/07/18 0%

43 Contractor set up and 
preliminary works

58 days Thu 26/07/18 Mon 15/10/18 0%

44 Construction 650 days Tue 16/10/18 Mon 12/04/21 0%

51 Wild Lane sustainable route90 days Wed 04/11/20 Tue 09/03/21 0%

Milestone: Yes

06/09

26/10

06/09

03/01

26/07

30/10

13/11

07/11

28/09

28/11

30/06

31/01

29/12

15/03

04/04

04/04

24/04

14/05

29/09

26/10

21/12

15/03

30/05

25/07

15/10

12/04

09/03

Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Progress

Manual Progress

M55 HEYHOUSES MILESTONE CHART

Page 2

Project: 

Pre Project M55 tender to cons

Date: Mon 09/10/17

P
age 91



P
age 92



Document is Restricted

Page 93

Agenda Item 10





Document is Restricted

Page 95





Document is Restricted

Page 97





Document is Restricted

Page 99





Document is Restricted

Page 129





Document is Restricted

Page 135

Agenda Item 12





Document is Restricted

Page 141





Document is Restricted

Page 145





Document is Restricted

Page 147





Document is Restricted

Page 149

Agenda Item 13





Document is Restricted

Page 153





LEP – Sub Committee

Growth Deal Management Board

Private and Confidential: No

11 October  2017

Amendments to the Core Grant Funding Agreement

Appendix A refers

Report Author: Julia Johnson, Legal and Democratic Services, Lancashire County
Council, 01772 533989, Julia.Johnson@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary 

The purpose of this report is to provide a summary of changes to be made to the 
Core template Grant Funding Agreement to be used as a basis for Growth Deal 
Grant Funding.

Recommendation

The Board are invited to receive, consider, comment and approve the changes to the 
Core GFA.

1. Background 

1.1 The Core Grant Funding Agreement currently used to support Growth Deal 
Grant Funding has been in use since the inception of the Growth Deal 
Programme.  We were assisted by external lawyers (DWF) in drawing up the 
document.  Its use has been tightly controlled on the basis that it is not 
negotiable except in relation to very project specific issues. 

1.2 As we have worked with the agreement, we have become aware of ways in 
which it should be improved for the benefit of the LEP, particularly since the 
funding proposals in GD3 are likely to be more complex and involve more private 
sector involvement at Applicant level.

2. Main Revisions to the Core GFA

2.1 The changes to the Grant Funding Agreement are set out and highlighted in the 
draft document in Appendix A.   The main revisions are as follows:

Page 157

Agenda Item 15

mailto:Julia.Johnson@lancashire.gov.uk


Bribery and Fraud

2.1.1 The Agreement already obliges the Applicant to comply with all applicable 
laws.  The amendments at Clause 3.1 (m) and 15.1 (t) clarify this in relation to 
Prohibited Acts (bribery and fraud).  Furthermore,  Clauses 6.1 (a) (vi),  v(ii), 
(xi);  Clause 15.1 (r) and (s); and Clause 22 result in an improvement in 
warranties obliging Applicant to act in good faith and to safeguard against 
conflicts of interest, bribery and fraud.

State Aid

2.1.2 The Agreement already obliges the Applicant to comply with all applicable laws.  
The amendments at Clauses 3.1 (n), 6.1 (a) (ii), 6.5(e), 6.9 and 25 clarify these 
obligations relating to state aid including the provision of security for clawback 
obligations.

Outputs, Milestones and Outcomes

2.1.3 Clause 6.1 (a) (viii) now requires all Outputs, Milestones and Outcomes 
(breach of which could lead to termination and clawback of funding) to be 
listed in Schedule 2.  Where the breach of any particular target is not to lead 
to termination and clawback this will need a specific amendment as a "project 
specific" issue.

3. Introducing the new Core GFA to Applicants

3.1 The new core document has been sent to the Applicant on the Blackpool 
Conference Centre Scheme and comments are awaited.  If it is felt that any 
comments ultimately received have real merit then we will seek further 
approval from GDMB for appropriate amendments.

Page 158



DWF LLP
1 Scott Place

2 Hardman Street
Manchester

M3 3AA  
46310716-1

2015

(1) LANCASHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

and

(2) [   ]                          

   GRANT AGREEMENT RELATING TO [   ]

Page 159



1

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

CONTENTS

PART A – General Provisions 3
1. Definitions and Interpretation 3
PART B – Commencement and duration 4
2. Commencement and Duration 4
3. The Applicant's Representations, Warranties and Undertakings 5
PART C – The Project 7
4. Project Delivery 7
5. Changes and no underwriting from the Council 7
6. The Applicant's Obligations 8
Part D - Obligations and Regulations 14
7. Intellectual Property Rights 14
8. Confidentiality 14
9. Freedom of Information 15
10. Data Protection 15
Part E – Payment, Monitoring and Audit 17
11. Grant Claims 17
12. Payment of Funding 19
13. Project Monitoring 22
14. Inspection and Audit 23
Part F – Termination, Suspension, Withdrawal, and Repayment of Grant 24
15. Events of Default, Remedies and Termination 24
Part G – General Provisions 27
16. Exclusion of Liability 27
17. Publicity 28
18. Reputation of the Council 29
19. Assignment and Subcontracting 29
20. Status of Applicant 29
21. Notices 29
22. Value Added Tax 30
23. Jurisdiction 30
24. Survival of this Agreement 30
25. Dispute Resolution 31
26. Miscellaneous 31
Schedule 1 34
Definitions 34
Schedule 2 43
The Project 43
Schedule 3 45
Expenditure Profile 45
Schedule 4 47
The Claim Form 47
Schedule 5 48
Exit Report 48
SCHEDULE 6 49

Page 160



2

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

Change Request Form 49

Page 161



3

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

THIS AGREEMENT 

Dated 2015

BETWEEN:

(1) LANCASHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL of PO Box 78, County Hall, Fishergate, 
Preston, Lancashire PR1 8XJ (the Council);

(2) [               ] of [         ](the Applicant).

BACKGROUND:

(A) The Council, as accountable body for the LEP, is awarding this Grant 
because the aims and objectives of the Project fall within the LEP's agreed 
priorities for the award of a grant from the LEP's Lancashire Growth Deal 
programme. The LEP has received funding by virtue of section 31 of the Local 
Government Act 2003.

(B) The Council agrees to make the Grant available in the total sum not 
exceeding the Maximum Sum for the purpose of financially assisting the 
Project. This Agreement sets out the terms and conditions on which the Grant 
is made available to the Applicant. These terms and conditions are intended 
to ensure that the Grant is used for the purposes for which it is awarded.

TERMS AGREED

PART A – GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Definitions and Interpretation

1.1 Definitions

In this Agreement words and phrases with a first capital letter (or any 
derivation thereof) shall have the meanings set out in Schedule1. 
(Definitions).

1.2 Interpretation

In this Agreement:

(a) references to:

(i) any statute or any section thereof or legislation generally include 
any statutory extension or modification, amendment or re-
enactment of such statutes and include all instruments, orders, 
bye-laws and regulations for the time being made, issued or 
given thereunder or deriving validity therefrom, and all other 
legislation of the European Community that is directly applicable 
to the United Kingdom;

Page 162



4

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

(ii) any clause, sub-clause, paragraph, sub-paragraph, or Schedule 
without further designation shall be construed as a reference to 
the clause, sub-clause, paragraph, sub-paragraph or Schedule 
to this Agreement so numbered;

(iii) the Site or any part thereof includes any estate or interest 
therein;

(iv) "this Agreement" includes any variations to this document 
made from time to time in accordance with this Agreement;

(v) "including" shall be construed so as not to limit the generality of 
any words or expressions in connection with which it is used;

(b) where the consent, approval or agreement of the Council is required 
pursuant to any clauses of this Agreement, , it shall not be construed as 
having been given unless provided in writing by the Council's Contract 
Manager;

(c) words importing one gender shall include both genders and the singular 
shall include the plural and vice versa;

(d) a person being connected with the Applicant shall be construed in 
accordance with the like provisions as are contained in Section 1122 of 
the Corporation Tax Act 2010;

(e) the Schedules form part of this Agreement and subject to clause 1.2(i) 
have the same force and effect as if expressly set out in the body of this 
Agreement;

(f) the headings in this Agreement will not affect its interpretation;

(g) determined or determination means, unless the contrary is indicated a 
determination made at the discretion of the person making it;

(h) the Council shall be construed as references to the LEP, as applicable; 
and

(i) in the event of any conflict between the following documents then they 
shall have priority in the order listed below (with the first document 
having priority over the next and so on):

(i) the clauses of this Agreement; and then

(ii) the schedules of this Agreement.

PART B – COMMENCEMENT AND DURATION

2. Commencement and Duration

2.1 This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties shall take effect 
on the Agreement Date and expire or terminate on the earlier of:

Page 163



5

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

(a) the Longstop Date; or

(b) the Termination Date.

2.2 Any obligations under this Agreement that remain unfulfilled following the 
expiry or termination of the Agreement shall survive expiry  or termination and 
continue in full force and effect until they have been fulfilled

3. The Applicant's Representations, Warranties and Undertakings

3.1 The Applicant represents, warrants and undertakes to the Council that:

(a) the Applicant is validly existing and has full power to enter into and 
perform this Agreement, the execution of this Agreement by the 
Applicant has been validly authorised and the obligations expressed as 
being assumed by the Applicant under this Agreement constitute valid 
legal and binding obligations of the Applicant enforceable against the 
Applicant;

(b) an Insolvency Event has not occurred in relation to it;

(c) neither the execution of this Agreement by the Applicant, the receipt of 
any part of the Grant nor the performance or observation of any of its 
obligations under it will:

(i) conflict with or result in any breach of any law or enactment or 
any deed, agreement or other instrument, obligation or duty to 
which the Applicant is bound;

(ii) cause any limitation on any of the powers whatsoever of the 
Applicant, or on the right or ability of the directors of the 
Applicant (as applicable) to exercise such powers; or

(iii) lead to the Applicant acting outside its respective powers;

(d) the Applicant is not in default under any law or enactment or under any 
deed, agreement or other instrument or obligation by which it is bound 
so as to affect adversely and materially its ability to perform its 
obligations under this Agreement;

(e) it has and will continue to have all consents, licences, rights and 
approvals required in connection with the execution, delivery, issue, 
validity or enforceability of this Agreement;

(f) no civil or criminal litigation or administrative or arbitration proceeding 
before any court, tribunal, Government authority or arbitrator or 
regulatory investigation or procedure is presently taking place, pending 
or (to the knowledge, information and belief of the Applicant) threatened 
against, or against any of the assets of, the Applicant which might have 

Page 164



6

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

a material adverse effect on its business, assets, condition or operations 
or might affect adversely its ability to perform its respective obligations 
under this Agreement;

(g) all information, documents and accounts of the Applicant supplied to the 
Council for its appraisal of the Project for the purposes of this Agreement 
including the Business Case are true, complete and accurate and no 
change has occurred since the date on which the same was supplied 
which renders the same untrue or misleading in any respect and that 
there has been no adverse change in the business, assets, finances 
operations affairs or prospects of the Applicant since such information, 
documents and accounts were provided and all other information 
supplied from the Applicant is true and accurate;

(h) neither it nor any member of its Group is subject to an outstanding 
recovery order following a Commission Decision declaring an aid illegal 
and incompatible with the Common Market;

(i) the Applicant has disclosed in writing to the Council all information which 
would or might reasonably be thought to influence the Council in 
awarding and/or paying any funding to the Applicant or the amount 
thereof;

(j) no person having any charge, lien, encumbrance or other form of 
security over the Site or any other assets of the Applicant has enforced 
or given notice of its intention to enforce such security nor has the 
Applicant done or omitted to do anything which would or might 
reasonably be expected to cause any person to enforce or exercise its 
rights to enforce such security;

(k) the Applicant is not aware, after due diligence and careful enquiry, of 
anything which materially threatens the success or successful 
Completion and in the event that  it becomes aware of anything which 
will materially and adversely affect successful  Completion it shall 
promptly notify the Authority in writing of the same;

(l) no Event of Default has occurred; and

(m) it has not committed , nor shall it commit , any Prohibited Act;

(n) it has complied with all Applicable Laws including for the avoidance of 
doubt the law relating to State Aid in connection with its application for 
the Grant.

3.2 Where any of the warranties, undertakings and representations in clause 3.1 
are given in respect of a state of affairs they shall be deemed given at the 
date of this Agreement and will be deemed to be repeated by the Applicant 
when each claim for an instalment of funding is submitted pursuant to clause 

Page 165



7

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

12 (Payment of Funding) as if made with reference to the facts and 
circumstances existing at such date.

3.3 No disclaimer or other statement that precludes the right of any person to rely 
upon the Business Case or any other document that forms part of the 
Business Case, or has a similar effect, shall apply with respect to the Council 
or affect the Council's right to enforce any provision of the Agreement.

3.4 The Council reserves the right to conduct a verification exercise to determine 
the veracity (or otherwise) of the representations or statements made by the 
Applicant either in relation to this Agreement, in the Business Case or at any 
stage during the development of the Business Case.

3.5 The Council reserves the right to conduct a verification exercise on the 
Applicant itself to determine its financial standing and viability to deliver the 
Project.

PART C – THE PROJECT

4. Project Delivery

4.1 The Applicant shall at all times deliver the Project in accordance with this 
Agreement.

5. Changes and no underwriting from the Council

5.1 The Applicant shall not in any circumstances vary or make any Material 
Alteration to the Project without the prior written consent of the Council. 

5.2 The Applicant shall apply for consent under clause 5.1 by completing a 
Change Request Form in the form set out in Schedule 6.   

5.3 The Council will use reasonable endeavours to respond to a Change Request 
Form within 10 Working Days of receipt. Failure to respond within this time 
shall not deem consent to have been given to the proposed Material 
Alteration.

5.4 A Material Alteration is any alteration which:

(a) changes the overall cost of the Project from that detailed in the 
Expenditure Profile; or

(b) results in a change of more than 10% from time to time in any periodic 
scheduled profile spend as set out in the Expenditure Profile but does 
not change the overall cost of the Project; or

(c) results in an overall change of more than 10% of the aggregate profile 
spend relating to any head of Qualifying Expenditure as set out in the 
Expenditure Profile but does not change the overall cost of the Project; 
or

Page 166



8

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

(d) results in any change of forecast Project Outputs, Project Milestones or 
Project Outcomes detailed in the Business Case or as specified in 
Schedule 2 or otherwise by the Council.

5.5 In the event that the Applicant is, or is likely to be perceived to have been by 
the Council, uncertain of whether a variation is a Material Alteration or not, it 
shall contact the Council for clarification.

5.6 By making payments of the Grant to the Applicant, neither the Council nor the 
LEP is underwriting the Project or providing any representation, commitment 
or guarantee as to the provision of funding.

6. The Applicant's Obligations

6.1 Warranties

(a) The Applicant warrants and undertakes to the Council that:

(i) the obligations of the Applicant under this Agreement shall be 
performed by appropriately qualified and trained personnel with 
reasonable skill, care and diligence and to such high standards 
of quality as it is reasonable for the Council to expect in all the 
circumstances;

(ii) it shall comply with all Applicable Laws, rules, regulations, codes 
of practice and guidelines in connection with all activities  in 
respect of the Project  including, for the avoidance of doubt , 
laws relating to State Aid;

(iii)  it has and shall keep in place adequate procedures for dealing 
with  any conflicts of interest when delivering the Project;

(iv) it has and shall keep in place systems to deal with the 
prevention of fraud and/or administrative malfunction;

(v) it shall deliver the Project in accordance with the Business Case 
and the Project Assessment Criteria;

(vi) all financial and other information concerning the Applicant 
which has been disclosed to the Council is to the best of its 
knowledge and belief ,true and accurate;

(vii) since the date of its last accounts there has been no material 
change in its financial position or prospects;

(viii) it shall deliver all Project Outputs, Project Milestones and Project 
Outcomes, within the milestones or dates set out in Schedule 2, 
the Business Case or as specified by the Council;

(ix) it shall deliver the Project and any material part thereof in a good 
and workmanlike manner, to professional standards and good 

Comment [A1]:  The inclusion of 
both Project Outcomes and 
Project Outputs in this Warranty 
means that any breach will be 
an event of default and can 
trigger clawback.  This may not 
be the desired position on every 
Project.  In some cases the 
intention may be to distinguish 
between hard outputs (which do 
link to events of default) and 
softer outcomes (which do not 
link to events of default but are 
simply monitored).  The 
business cases need to be clear 
as to the intention so that the 
correct drafting is used in the 
GFA.

Page 167



9

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

industry practice, with the Consents or otherwise in compliance 
with all conditions attaching to the Grant, Applicable Laws, 
including Part II Supply of Goods and Services Act 1982; 

(x) any goods or works supplied or procured by the Applicant 
forming a part of the Project will be of good and suitable quality 
and that all services will be provided with due skill and care; and

(xi) act at all times reasonably ,in good faith, in accordance with 
good business ethics and in a manner that reflects and does not 
harm or damage, whether by way of any act, omission or 
statement ,the good name, goodwill and reputation of the 
Council and /or the LEP and/or the Project; and

(xii) it has secured funding separate to the Grant to contribute 
towards the total cost of delivery of the Project as set out in the 
Business Case within agreed timescales.

(b) The Applicant acknowledges that the Council will be relying upon the 
Applicant's skill, expertise and experience in the performance of the 
Project and also upon the accuracy of all representations or statements 
made and the advice given by the Applicant in connection with the 
performance of the Project and the accuracy of any documents 
conceived, originated, made or developed by the Applicant as part of this 
Agreement.

6.2 Consents

The Applicant shall:

(a) not carry out any work upon the Site without having obtained all 
necessary Consents for that work and in particular (but without prejudice 
to the generality of the foregoing) shall not carry out any work 
constituting development for which planning permission is required 
without having obtained detailed planning consent for that work, and 
shall if requested by the Council produce to it such documents or copy 
documents as the Council may require to demonstrate satisfaction of its 
obligations under this paragraph;

(b) at all times throughout the Project comply with all Consents; and

(c) ensure that the planning and operation of the Project reflect the 
principles of Sustainable Development with the aim of ensuring 
sustainability within the Lancashire region.

6.3 Public Procurement

(a) The Applicant shall:

Page 168



10

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

(i) adopt EU Procurement Requirements (as required) in 
connection with the procurement of any of the Works, any 
Assets or any services in each case in respect of which funding 
is to be provided by the Council;

(ii) promptly provide to the Council any information which the 
Council may request in order to satisfy itself that the Applicant 
has done so; and

(iii) ensure that all procurement of any of the Works, any Assets or 
any services shall deliver value for money by carrying out a 
quotation exercise involving a minimum of three written quotes.

6.4 Applicant's Contractors and Employees

The Applicant shall:

(a) include in its contracts with suppliers or contractors engaged for the 
purposes of the Project a written condition undertaking to make payment 
for the supply of their goods and/or services within thirty (30) days of 
receipt of the supplier's or contractor's valid and undisputed invoice 
(provided that such goods and/or services have been supplied in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of the relevant contract);

(b) use all reasonable endeavours to ensure that its employees are not 
claiming any government benefit, where payment of such benefit is 
precluded due to earnings;

(c) ensure that its employees who are not EC nationals are legally entitled 
to be resident in the United Kingdom and, where applicable, have a work 
permit;

(d) ensure that it has proper employment policies and procedures in place at 
all times.  The Applicant will pay attention to equalities in the recruitment 
and selection process and the need to ensure an appropriate balance of 
staff in the Applicant's organisation;

(e) maintain all financial records including personnel and payroll records for  
any staff funded  by the Council for at least six years after the Grant has 
ended.  The Applicant will complete all statutory returns for employees 
and make all relevant payments to cover their pensions and salary 
deductions, such as income tax and National Insurance contributions;

(f) undertake in all cases where support is provided on the Grant for the 
employment of staff   issue a contract of employment to such staff that is 
in compliance with relevant laws and regulations;

(g) ensure that its employees, suppliers and contractors (and their 
employees) are suitably skilled and appropriately experienced, trained 

Page 169



11

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

qualified and competent in all respects to perform necessary work or 
tasks in relation to the Project; and

(h) immediately notify the Council of any claim brought against the Applicant 
arising out of the Project including any claim made against any supplier 
or contractor of which the Applicant receives notification.

6.5 Legislation

The Applicant shall (and shall procure that its employees, agents suppliers 
and contractors shall), comply in all respects with all Applicable Laws in 
relation to the carrying out of the Project, and without prejudice to the 
generality of the foregoing shall:

(a) at all times comply with the Equality Act 2010;

(b) shall provide such evidence to the Council on request of a policy 
covering equal opportunities including policies to prevent any 
discrimination on the grounds of colour, race, creed, nationality or any 
other unjustifiable basis directly or indirectly in relation to the 
implementation of the Project; 

(c) comply with all relevant requirements contained in or having effect under 
any legislation relating to health, safety and welfare at work; and

(d) in the event of any conflict between the Business Case and any 
Applicable Law, comply with the Applicable Law;

(e) ensure the Project is completed in accordance with laws relating to  
State Aid and to maintain appropriate records of compliance with laws 
relating to State Aid and to take all reasonable steps to assist the 
Council to respond to any investigation in relation to the Project

6.6 Insurance

The Applicant shall at all times during the carrying out of the Project:

(a) maintain or procure that there are maintained full and proper insurance 
policies including (but without prejudice to the generality of the 
foregoing) policies in respect of damage, loss or destruction of all 
buildings upon the Site and all works undertaken in carrying out the 
Works and all unfixed goods and materials in connection with such 
Works and the Assets for in every case the full reinstatement or 
replacement costs thereof from time to time together with employer's 
liability insurance and public liability insurance to a minimum cover of 
such amount as is required by law from time to time (or such greater 
cover as may be required by the Council from time to time);

(b) if requested, supply evidence of such insurance policies to the 
satisfaction of the Council before entering into any arrangement in 

Page 170



12

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

respect of any of the Assets or commencing the Works and at any time 
until Completion ;

(c) if any building upon the Site or any works forming part of the Works or 
the Project or any materials or goods required to undertake such Works 
or any of the Assets are destroyed or damaged (other than as necessary 
as part of the carrying out of the Works), procure the rebuilding, 
reinstatement or replacement of such building, work, goods or materials 
or Assets in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement as soon 
as reasonably practicable and if the insurance proceeds shall be 
insufficient the Applicant shall make up any deficiency out of its own 
monies; and

(d) not do or omit to do or permit anything to be done or omitted to be done 
which may render any policy or policies of insurance void or voidable.

6.7 Notification by the Applicant

Notwithstanding the provisions of clause 5, the Applicant shall notify, and 
provide evidence (as requested), to the Council in writing as soon as it is 
aware:

(a) in the event of any material change in the information on costs (whether 
actual or estimated) of carrying out the Project provided for the appraisal 
of funding or if any event arises which materially affects the continued 
accuracy of such information;

(b) of any fact, matter or circumstance of which it becomes aware which 
would render any information, documents or accounts provided to the 
Council in relation to the Project to be false or misleading;

(c) other than that already mentioned in the Business Case and/or 
Independent Assessment Report in the event of the receipt by it of any 
other Public Sector Financial Assistance in respect of the Project (or the 
offer of same) and/or any Revenue;

(d) of any event, problem or issue which might adversely affect the carrying 
out and Completion  or any part thereof;

(e) if there are any delays to the Project or it is unable to submit a claim in 
accordance with the Expenditure Profile set out in this Agreement;

(f) in the event that the Applicant:

(i) becomes a subsidiary (within the meaning of section 1159 of the 
Companies Act 2006) of another company; or

(ii) a person acquires either:

(1) 25 % or more of the voting rights in the Applicant, or

Page 171



13

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

(2) the right to appoint or remove not less than 25% of the 
board of directors of the Applicant;

(iii) immediately on the occurrence of an Event of Default;

(iv) does not intend to claim funding up to the Maximum Sum.

6.8 Completion

The Applicant shall:

(a) procure that Completion shall be achieved and shall give fourteen (14) 
Working Days prior written notice to the Council of the date when it 
anticipates that Completion will occur;

(b) as soon as possible, and not later than five (5) Working Days after 
Completion, provide to the Council such evidence as the Council may 
require that Completion has been achieved including where relevant a 
copy of any certificate of practical completion of the Works (as certified 
by the Project Manager and the Monitoring Officer of the Applicant) or 
the Development (as certified by the Employer’s Agent) and/or 
confirmation from the supplier of the Assets and/or any services that the 
same have been delivered, installed, commissioned, accepted and are 
operational (as applicable).

6.9 Further Assurance

At any time upon the written request of the Council it shall promptly execute 
and deliver or procure the execution and delivery of any and all such further 
instruments and documents as may be necessary for the purpose of obtaining 
for the Council the full benefit of this Agreement and of the rights and powers 
herein granted and hereby irrevocably appoints the Council its attorney for 
that purpose. Such instruments and documents may include security 
documents to secure any repayment obligation of the Applicant relating to the 
Grant funding under this Agreement.

6.10 Co-operation

(a) The Applicant and the Council shall at all times act with the utmost good 
faith towards and co-operate with each other;

(b) The Applicant shall comply with all the Council's reasonable instructions 
and requirements in relation to the Project from time to time.

6.11 Funding separate to the Grant

(a) Pursuant to clause 6.1(a)(vii), the Applicant shall provide, on the 
reasonable request of the Council, evidence that it has secured funding 
separate to the Grant to facilitate the successful Completion.

Page 172



14

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

(b) The separate funding referred to in clause 6.1(a)(vii) shall constitute at 
least 10% towards the total cost of the Project.

(c) The Applicant’s Chief Financial Officer (or person within the Applicant’s 
organisation who exercises equivalent functions) shall certify to the 
Council that the Applicant has the ability to fund Project costs not 
covered by the Grant, as necessary.

6.12 Duty of care warranty from the Applicant’s Employer’s Agent

(a) The Applicant shall, at its own expense (and not via the Grant), ensure 
that the Employer’s Agent provides a duty of care warranty and 
Employer’s Agent Initial Report to the Council, in a form approved by the 
Council, in relation to the Development.

(b) The Applicant shall, at its own expense (and not via the Grant) ensure 
that the Employer’s Agent provides an Employer’s Agent Certificate, in 
the form set out at Schedule 4, Part C, with each claim for Grant which 
the Applicant makes to the Council.

6.13 Project Manager

(a) The Applicant shall appoint a Project Manager, who shall have sufficient 
decision-making authority to act, or make decisions, on behalf of the 
Applicant.

(b) The Project Manager shall be the Council’s principal point of contact for 
all matters related to the Project and the Grant.

6.14 Engagement of the Applicant

(a) The Applicant shall procure the delivery of the Project Outputs, Project 
Milestones and Project Outcomes as set out in this Agreement within the 
timescales herein set out or otherwise in a timely fashion.

(b) The Applicant shall adhere to monitoring and evaluation activities as 
detailed in the Business Case and shall engage with the LEP's wider 
Assurance Framework as required by the Council or the LEP (as 
appropriate). The Applicant shall appoint a Monitoring Officer who will 
ensure compliance with Project Outputs, Project Milestones and Project 
Outcomes, monitoring and evaluation requirements including the 
collection, recording and reporting of agreed monitoring and evaluation 
information data, maintaining and updating any monitoring templates 
required by the Council or the LEP (as appropriate) and attending and 
participating in the implementation and delivery of the Growth Deal 
Evaluation Framework.

(c) As required, the Applicant shall engage with the longer term evaluation 
of impacts on project activities and the Project Outputs, Project 
Milestones and Project Outcomes, co-operate with and support any 

Page 173



15

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

Growth Deal Monitoring & Evaluation activities throughout the six year 
period of the LEP’s Growth Deal programme and, additionally, up to 
three years following conclusion on the LEP’s Growth Deal programme.  

(d) If at any time it appears that any of the Project Outputs, Project 
Milestones and Project Outcomes have not, or will not, be achieved, the 
Applicant shall present a remedial plan (in the form specified by the 
Council or the LEP), within seven (7) Working Days, to the LEP for 
approval.

PART D - OBLIGATIONS AND REGULATIONS

7. Intellectual Property Rights

7.1 The Intellectual Property Rights created by the Applicant under the Project 
(Project Intellectual Property Rights) remain the property of the Applicant, 
but subject always to the following provisions of this clause 7 (Intellectual 
Property Rights).

7.2 The Applicant warrants to the Council that the Project Intellectual Property 
Rights will not infringe, in whole or in part, any Intellectual Property Right of 
any other person and agrees to indemnify the Council and hold the Council 
harmless against any and all claims, demands and proceedings arising 
against the Council in relation thereto.

8. Confidentiality

8.1 This Agreement and all documents and information provided by the Council to 
the Applicant under or in connection with the performance of this Agreement, 
or during its negotiation, shall be treated as confidential (the Confidential 
Information). The Confidential Information shall not be used by the Applicant 
except for the purposes for which they were made available and the 
Confidential Information shall not be disclosed by the Applicant to any other 
person without the prior written consent of Council. The Applicant shall ensure 
that its employees, agents, professional and other advisors, managers and 
sub-contractors engaged in relation to this Project are under a similar 
obligation of confidentiality in respect of the Confidential Information. The 
above restriction shall not apply to the Confidential Information which:

(a) the Applicant can demonstrate to the Council's satisfaction it is already 
in the public domain other than as a result of a breach of this clause 8 
(Confidentiality); or

(b) is disclosed to the Applicant without any obligation of confidence by a 
third party who has not derived it directly or indirectly from Council; or

(c) is trivial or cannot reasonably be considered to be confidential.

Page 174



16

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

(d) the obligations of confidentiality contained in this clause 8 
(Confidentiality) shall continue after expiry or termination of this 
Agreement howsoever occasioned.

9. Freedom of Information

9.1 Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent the Council from disclosing any 
Information whether or not relating to the Project which the Council in its 
absolute discretion considers it is required to disclose in order to comply with 
the FOIA and/or the Environmental Information Regulations and any other 
statutory requirements whether or not existing at the date of this Agreement, 
and the Council reserves the right to make such disclosure without reference 
to the Applicant.

9.2 If the Council shall at any time notify the Applicant that it has received a 
Request for Information in respect of which the Council requires the 
Applicant's assistance then:

(a) the Applicant shall at its own cost provide and procure that its sub-
contractors provide all necessary assistance required by the Council in 
order to allow the Council to comply with the Request for Information 
within the period or periods when it is obliged to respond to the Request 
for Information;

(b) without limitation to the foregoing the Applicant shall at its own cost 
within five (5) Working Days of request supply and procure that its sub-
contractors supply to the Council such Information and documents 
requested by the Council in such form as reasonably prescribed by the 
Council; and

(c) the Applicant shall ensure that all Information produced in the course of 
the Project in relation to the Project and/or this Agreement is retained for 
disclosure and shall permit the Council to inspect such records as 
required from time to time.

9.3 In the event that the Applicant or its professional advisors shall at any time 
receive any Request for Information relating to the Project or this Agreement 
or any activities or business of the Council then:

(a) the Applicant shall supply the Request for Information to the Council 
within two (2) Working Days of receipt;

(b) the Council shall be responsible for determining in its absolute discretion 
as to whether such Information is obliged to be disclosed; and

(c) the Applicant shall not respond to the Request for Information or disclose 
any such Information without the prior written consent of the Council 
(such consent not to be unreasonably withheld).

Page 175



17

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

10. Data Protection

10.1 In this clause 10 (Data Protection) references to "personal data", " data 
subjects" and "data processor" are to be interpreted as defined in the Data 
Protection Act 1998 (the Act). The Applicant shall comply with all relevant 
provisions of the Act and do nothing which causes, or may cause, the Council 
to be in breach of its obligations under the Act. In particular, to the extent that 
the Applicant acts as a data processor in respect of any personal data 
pursuant to this Agreement, the Applicant shall only process such personal 
data as is necessary to enable it to fulfil its obligations under this Agreement

10.2 The Applicant warrants that it has appropriate technical and organisational 
measures in place to protect any personal data it is processing on the 
Council's behalf against any unauthorised or unlawful processing and against 
any accidental loss, destruction or damage and undertakes to maintain such 
measures during the course of this Agreement. The Applicant shall also take 
all reasonable steps to ensure the reliability of its staff having access to any 
such personal data.

10.3 The Applicant further warrants that it will monitor and maintain the integrity of 
its personal data and in full accordance with the Data Protection Principles.

10.4 Upon reasonable notice the Applicant shall allow the Council access to any 
relevant premises owned or controlled by it to enable the Council to inspect its 
procedures described at clause 10.2 above and will upon the Council's 
request from time to time prepare a report for it on the technical and 
organisational measures it has in place to protect the personal data it is 
processing on the Council's behalf.

10.5 The Applicant shall at its own cost, at the Council's request, assist the Council 
to comply with any requests for access to personal data under section 7 of the 
Act and in particular shall respond to any such request promptly to enable the 
Council to comply with its obligations under the Act. When requested by the 
Council, the Applicant shall at its own cost promptly provide it with any 
personal data relating to this Agreement.

10.6 The Applicant shall indemnify the Council against all claims and proceedings, 
and all costs and expenses incurred in connection therewith, made or brought 
against the Council by any person in respect of the Act or equivalent 
applicable legislation in any other country which claims would not have arisen 
but for some act, omission, misrepresentation or negligence on the part of the 
Applicant or its sub-contractors and hold it harmless against all costs, losses 
and liability whatsoever incurred by it arising out of any action or inaction on 
its part in relation to any of its obligations as set out in this Agreement which 
results in the Council being in breach of its obligations under the Act or 
equivalent applicable legislation in any other country.

Page 176



18

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

10.7 The Applicant warrants that it has submitted, pursuant to section 18(1) of the 
Act, a notification to the Information Commissioner (as defined in the FOIA) 
and shall keep that notification up to date.

10.8 The Applicant shall not transfer any personal data outside the European 
Economic Area unless authorised in writing to do so by the Council.

10.9 Upon the termination of this Agreement for whatever reason the Applicant 
shall, unless notified otherwise by the Council or required by law, immediately 
cease any processing of the personal data on the Council's behalf and as 
requested by the Council destroy or provide the Council with a copy on 
suitable media.

10.10 The Applicant shall promptly carry out any request from the Council requiring 
it to amend, transfer or delete the personal data or any part of the personal 
data.

10.11 Where the Applicant is required to collect any personal data on behalf of the 
Council, it shall ensure that it provides the data subjects from whom the 
personal data are collected with a data protection notice in a form to be 
agreed with the Council.

PART E – PAYMENT, MONITORING AND AUDIT

11. Grant Claims

11.1 The Applicant shall:

(a) ensure that all claims for Grant submitted to the Council contain the 
information set out in Schedule 4 (Claim Form); and

(b) not make any claim for Grant from the Council unless the Applicant is 
satisfied that all the conditions specified in clause 11.6 have been met in 
full.

11.2 Upon receipt of a claim for an instalment of Grant by the Applicant:

(a) the Council shall review the Transaction List provided as part of the 
claim (pursuant to clause 11.6(a)(ii)) and shall request such evidence of 
defrayal, including, but not limited to, certified and dated copies of 
invoices, BACS report, receipts or proof of payment related to a number 
of entries detailed on the Transaction List (such number to be 
determined at the Council’s absolute discretion); and

(b) once the Council has received the evidence requested pursuant to 
clause 11.2(a), it shall review the evidence and verify the accuracy of the 
evidence; and

Page 177



19

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

(c) the Council shall make a payment to the Applicant in respect of the claim 
within thirty (30) days  of the Grant Claim Date provided it is satisfied as 
to this verification exercise.

11.3 Notwithstanding clause 11.2, the Applicant shall provide to the Council such 
invoices and evidence of defrayal as requested by the Council at its absolute 
discretion.

11.4 Subject to clause 11.5, the Council shall not pay any funding to the Applicant 
unless it is satisfied that the conditions specified in clause 11.6 have been met 
in full. The payment of any of the Grant shall not operate as a waiver of any of 
the conditions set out in clause 11.6, nor exclude or waive the Council's the 
exercise any of Its rights or remedies under this Agreement.

11.5 The Council may, in its absolute discretion, and on such terms as it may 
specify, agree to pay funding to the Applicant before the conditions in clause 
11.6 have been met in full, but if the Council does so, this will not prejudice its 
rights to refuse to pay any further funding until those conditions are met or to 
exercise its rights to require repayment in accordance with the provisions of 
this Agreement of the whole or any part of the funding previously paid to the 
Applicant

11.6 The conditions mentioned in clause 11.1 are as follows:

(a) the claim for an instalment of Grant by the Applicant is for the payment 
of certified invoices (showing monies incurred and paid by the Applicant) 
relating to Qualifying Expenditure in accordance with Schedule 3 
(Expenditure Profile) and this claim:

(i) relates solely to Qualifying Expenditure in relation to which the 
Applicant has not submitted any other claim to the Council;

(ii) includes the Transaction List;

(iii) is made quarterly in arrears (unless otherwise agreed by the 
Council);

(iv) is the only claim made in relation to Qualifying Expenditure 
covering a specific Quarter and is submitted before the 15th day 
of the month immediately following the end of the Quarter to 
which the claim relates (or where such day is not a Working Day 
then by the Working Day which is prior to the 15th day)  (the 
"Grant Claim Date")

(b) the Council is satisfied that the Applicant has (and will continue to have) 
sufficient funding (whether from its own resources or otherwise and 
including the Grant) to complete the Project by the Longstop Date;

(c) the Applicant has satisfied the Council in respect of its cover under 
policies of insurance applicable to the Project;

Page 178



20

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

(d) the expenditure to which the claim relates is in accordance with the 
Expenditure Profile and Business Case and is approved by the Council;

(e) no Event of Default has occurred or is continuing;

(f) the representations and warranties made in clauses 3 (The Applicant’s 
Representations, Warranties and Undertakings) and 6 remain true, 
complete and accurate;

(g) the claim by the Applicant for an instalment of funding is not in relation to 
expenditure to make good damage to the Works occasioned by 
insurable risks or to make good any defects in the Works;

(h) the Council is satisfied that the relevant part of the Project in relation to 
which funding is being claimed has been undertaken in accordance with 
the Agreement;

(i) the Applicant has complied with all Applicable Laws;

(j) the Council is satisfied that the relevant part of the Project in relation to 
which funding is being claimed constitutes value for money; and

(k) the claim is accompanied by such financial and other information, 
representations and evidence related to the Project, its milestones and 
outcomes as requested by the Council.

11.7 To ensure that there is not a significant delay in the commencement of the 
Project, if the conditions mentioned in clause 11.6 have not been fully 
complied with and the Applicant’s first claim has not been made by the date 
three (3) months from the date of this Agreement or such later date as the 
Council may in its absolute discretion agree in writing (whether or not any 
previous date fixed hereunder has passed), the Council may by notice in 
writing terminate this Agreement and any sums already paid to the Applicant 
shall be repaid to the Council forthwith.

12. Payment of Funding

12.1 Payment details

(a) Subject to the provisions of this Agreement the Council shall pay funding 
(not exceeding in total the Maximum Sum or the Individual Maximum 
Sums for the relevant heads of the Qualifying Expenditure (identified in 
Schedule 3)) into the Applicant’s bank account at:

(i) [Applicant]
Bank:

Sort Code: 

Page 179



21

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

Account:

Account Number:

No obligation

(b) The Council shall be under no obligation to pay the Applicant for any 
claim:

(i) to pay more than the Maximum Sum or the Individual Maximum 
Sums to the Applicant under this agreement; or

(ii) which has been incurred but not yet been paid for by the 
Applicant.

(c) Pursuant to clause 12.1(b)(i), in the event that the actual total cost of the 
Project exceeds, or is likely to exceed, the predicted total cost of the 
Project specified in the Business Case, the difference in the predicted 
and actual total Project cost shall be borne entirely by the Applicant.

(d) The Applicant accepts that the LEP, and the Council as accountable 
body, is receiving grant funding from the Government’s Local Growth 
Fund by virtue of a discretionary grant provided on an annual basis 
under section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003 and consequently, 
the Applicant’s receipt of the Grant is likewise conditional on the LEP, 
and the Council as accountable body, receiving such grant funding from 
the Government.

(e) Neither the Council nor the LEP shall be liable for any Grant which 
cannot be paid to the Applicant due to the cancellation or non-payment 
of the discretionary grant by the Government to the LEP, or Council as 
accountable body, at any point during delivery of the Project.

(f) Claims for Grant shall only be made by the Applicant once grant funding 
has been provided to the Council, as accountable body for the LEP, from 
the Government.

(g) The payment of the Grant by the Council under this Agreement is 
believed to be outside the scope of Value Added Tax but if any Value 
Added Tax shall become chargeable all payments comprising the Grant 
shall be deemed to be inclusive of all Value Added Tax and the Council 
shall not be obliged to pay any Value Added Tax over and above the 
Grant. Irrecoverable Value Added Tax shall be an eligible cost of this 
Project to the extent it is included as such under Schedule 3, 
(Expenditure Profile)

(h) The Grant shall be allocated for a particular Financial Year. Any 
instalment of Grant allocated to a particular Financial Year must:

Page 180



22

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

(i) be claimed by the Applicant in the Financial Year to which the 
instalment of the Grant relates, subject to the relevant Qualifying 
Expenditure being verified; or

(ii) if claimed in the subsequent Financial Year relate to Qualifying 
Expenditure identified in the Business Case and in the 
Expenditure Profile as being forecast to be incurred in the 
Financial Year to which the instalment of Grant relates, and the 
reason for the delay in making the claim must be accepted by 
the Council.

12.2 Repayment 

(a) If the Council shall determine that any expenditure previously defrayed 
to the Applicant and the subject of a prior instalment is not Qualifying 
Expenditure or if at any time the Council has paid more than it is liable to 
pay under any provision of this Agreement (each an Overpayment), the 
Applicant shall forthwith on receipt of a demand in writing from the 
Council setting out the details of the Overpayment, pay to the Council 
the Overpayment.

(b) The Council may vary or withhold any or all of the payments of funding 
under this Agreement and/or require repayment of any or all funding 
already paid to the extent that repayment is required under or by virtue 
of any Applicable Laws.

(c) In the event that the Council (or LEP) is required to repay any of the 
Grant to the Government either during or after delivery of the Project, the 
LEP shall reserve the right, at its absolute discretion, to vary, suspend, 
withhold or require repayment of the Grant paid or payable to the 
Applicant.

(d) Any funding required to be repaid by the Applicant to the Council in 
accordance with this Agreement shall bear Interest and any payments 
due to the Council shall be made without any deduction  whether by way 
of  set off, counterclaim, discount, abatement or otherwise.

(e) Within twenty-eight (28) Working Days after the final claim for funding 
following Completion (or (if earlier) twelve (12) months after Completion), 
the Applicant shall make such payment to the Council as shall be 
necessary to ensure that the Council has not provided funding in excess 
of the Maximum Sum.

(f)  Where the Council requires the Applicant to repay any amount of the 
Grant, the Applicant shall repay the amount concerned within twenty (20) 
Working Days of receiving the demand for repayment. The liability to 
meet such a demand shall be enforceable as a contractual debt.

Page 181



23

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

(g) Where the Council makes a determination to recover any amount of 
Grant, it may recover the amount concerned by withholding or 
unilaterally deducting the amount from any sum due from the Council to 
the Applicant under this Agreement for the support of any other project 
or activities by the Council, or under a different agreement with the 
Council.

12.3 Variations

(a) The Council reserves the right to vary the Maximum Sum, any Individual 
Maximum Sum or to reduce the relevant percentage of the Grant in 
comparison with the total Project costs in any of the circumstances 
mentioned below:

(i) the issue of a consent by the Council under clause 5.1; or

(ii) the receipt by the Applicant of any other Public Sector Financial 
Assistance (other than that already named in the Business Case 
and/or the Independent Assessment Report) or Revenue and in 
such circumstances the amount of variation shall not exceed the 
amount of any additional funding. 

(b) In the event that the actual total cost of the Project is, or is projected to 
be, lower than the predicted total cost of the Project as specified in the 
Business Case, the Maximum Sum shall be reduced in proportion to the 
reduction in the total Project cost.

13. Project Monitoring

13.1 Provision of information by the Applicant

The Applicant shall:

(a) notify the Council in writing no later than six (6) months prior to the 
Longstop Date that it shall, or shall not, draw down the Grant prior to the 
Longstop Date;

(b) procure that the Project Manager and/or any other officers of the 
Applicant as may reasonably be requested by the Council shall attend 
such meetings as the Council may reasonably request with the Council 
and any third parties invited by the Council to review progress in relation 
to the Project;

(c) provide (and keep updated) the Council with such information and 
evidence, either in the form set out at Schedule 4 Part B or otherwise, as 
the Council may request in connection with the Project and/or this 
Agreement, on a basis determined by the Council, from the date hereof 
to three (6) years after the Longstop Date;

Page 182



24

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

(d) provide monthly progress and risk management reports (to include an 
insurance review if required) to the Council in the form specified by the 
Council; and

(e) from the date of this Agreement until three (3) years after the End Date 
provide the Council with such information as is available as to the 
number of persons employed or to be employed on the Site (whether 
part or full time) after Completion and with such other information as may 
be requested by the Council as to the benefits derived from the provision 
of Grants for the Project.

13.2 Post Completion

The Applicant shall provide to the Council the Exit Report within one month of 
Completion.

14. Inspection and Audit

14.1 The Applicant shall:

(a) until 6 years after the Longstop Date or, if relevant, for such longer 
period as may be required by law retain documentary evidence of all 
capital and revenue purchases to support all amounts claimed from the 
Council. These records shall include an invoice register of suppliers' and 
contractors' invoices and all other documents relating to the purchase of 
Assets, and/or the carrying on of Works and/or services funded by the 
Council or any amounts claimed under this Agreement;

(b) allow access to its business premises on two (2) Working Days' notice 
during 9.00 am – 5.00 pm to the Council's internal auditors or its other 
duly authorised staff or agents, European Commission, the National 
Audit Office, the Secretary of State for Business, Innovation and Skills 
and/or any other regulatory body or governmental or quasi-governmental 
organisation which has a legitimate interest in this Agreement to inspect 
such documents and take copies thereof as the Council, considers 
necessary in connection with this Agreement. 

(c) The Council shall be entitled to interview employees of the Applicant in 
order to obtain oral and/or written explanations of documents and the 
Applicant shall provide access to the relevant employees at such times 
as may be reasonably required to enable the Council to do so. The 
Council reserves the right to have such staff or agents carry out 
examinations into the probity, economy, efficiency and effectiveness with 
which the Applicant has used the Grant in relation to the Project and the 
performance of this Agreement;

(d) permit the Council, or persons authorised by it, to inspect, audit and take 
copies of all reports, books, accounting records and vouchers relating to 

Page 183



25

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

the Project which the Council considers relevant and at any date up and 
until Completion allow the Council to inspect the Site for such purposes;

(e) permit the Council, or persons authorised by it, to attend meetings at the 
Site with the Applicant’s Project Manager, Employer’s Agent or other 
representatives;

(f) maintain full and accurate accounts for the Project in accordance with all 
Applicable Laws and accounting standards and (to the extent that no 
accounting standard is applicable) use generally accepted accounting 
principles and practices of the United Kingdom then in force. For the 
purposes of this clause 14.1(f) "accounting standards" means the 
statements of standard accounting practice referred to in section 464 of 
the Companies Act 2006 issued by the Financial Reporting Council (or 
any successor body);

(g) until the End Date, annually submit final accounts to the Council within 
the legal timescale required for filing financial statements. If the final 
accounts, have not been received within the above timescale, any 
payment of funding may be suspended until receipt of the relevant 
documentation and/or previous payments of funding shall, if required by 
the Council, be repaid to the Council forthwith on demand by the 
Council; and in addition shall provide such annual final accounts for a 
further  period of up to three years after the End Date if requested by the 
Council; and

(h) keep a register of Assets and their locations and provide copies of this to 
the Council on request.

14.2 Conflicts of interest and financial irregularities

(a) The Applicant and all officers, employees and other persons engaged or 
consulted by the Applicant in connection with the Project shall not be in a 
position where there is a conflict of interest and the Applicant shall keep 
in place formal procedures obliging all such persons to declare any 
actual or potential personal or financial interest in any matter concerning 
the Project, and to be excluded from any discussion or decision-making 
relating to the matter concerned.

(b) If the Applicant has any grounds for suspecting any financial impropriety 
in the use of any amount paid under the Agreement, it must notify the 
Council immediately, explain what steps are being taken to investigate 
the suspicion, and keep the Council informed about the progress of the 
investigation. For these purposes "financial impropriety" includes fraud 
or other impropriety; mismanagement and/or use of Grant for improper 
purposes.

Page 184



26

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

(c) The Council shall be entitled to interview employees of the Applicant if 
fraud or other financial irregularity is suspected by the Council on the 
part of the Applicant, its employees or agents in connection with the 
Project.

PART F – TERMINATION, SUSPENSION, WITHDRAWAL, AND REPAYMENT OF 
GRANT

15. Events of Default, Remedies and Termination

15.1 An Event of Default occurs where:

(a) Completion has not been achieved by the Longstop Date (time being of 
the essence) or the Council determines that proper progress in carrying 
out the Project or any part thereof is not being maintained so as to 
enable Completion to occur;

(b) the Council is not satisfied that the Works or any material part thereof 
have been carried out in a good and workmanlike manner or in 
accordance with the Consents or otherwise in compliance with all 
relevant legislation, including Part II Supply of Goods and Services Act 
1982;

(c) the Council is not satisfied that title to the Assets has passed to the 
Applicant, or that the Assets are of satisfactory quality and fit for their 
purpose;

(d) the Council is not satisfied that any other services which have been 
provided to the Applicant as part of the Project have been provided with 
reasonable skill and care;

(e) the Applicant fails to perform or observe or is in breach of any material 
obligation, Applicable Laws or restriction on its part contained in or 
implied by this Agreement, or as communicated to the Applicant by the 
Council;

(f) any Consent is withdrawn or revoked or expires or is modified or made 
subject to any condition which in the Council's opinion may materially or 
adversely affect the Applicant's ability to perform and observe its 
obligations under this Agreement;

(g) any representation or warranty made or repeated by the Applicant 
pursuant to this Agreement, in the Business Case or at any stage during 
development of the Business Case, or in any statement delivered or 
made pursuant to it, is misleading, untrue, incomplete or inaccurate, 
either when made or repeated; or the Applicant has withheld relevant 
information from the Council;

(h) there are issues of cost increases or delays to Completion ;

Page 185



27

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

(i) the Council is of the opinion that, taking into account the funding to be 
provided under this (and other) Agreements, the Applicant no longer has 
the necessary resources and funding to complete the Project and there 
is a real and substantial risk of a shortfall in the financing of the Project;

(j) the Applicant undergoes an Insolvency Event;

(k) the Applicant sells or dispose of all or a substantial part of its business or 
assets;

(l) the Applicant is convicted (or any officers or representatives of the 
Applicant are convicted) of a criminal offence related to the business or 
professional conduct of the Applicant;

(m) the Applicant commits (or any officers or representatives of the Applicant 
commit) an act of which in the opinion of the Council constitutes bad 
faith or is at risk of placing the Council or the Project into disrepute.

(n) the Applicant is in the opinion of the Council in material default under 
any other agreement with the Council and such default has not been 
remedied to the satisfaction of the Council;

(o) any fraud, or mismanagement of the Grant, has been committed by the 
Applicant and/or its employees in connection with the Project; 

(p) the activities carried out by the Applicant are distinct or different from the 
description set out in the Business Case having regard also to the 
intended function of the Project and the end beneficiaries of the Project; 

(q) the Applicant is deemed by the Council not to be delivering, or capable 
of delivering, the Project in accordance with the Business Case and/or 
the Expenditure Profile;

(r) the Applicant uses the Grant for purposes other than those for which it 
has  been awarded; or

(s) the Applicant obtains duplicate funding from a third party for any 
expenditure funded under this Agreement.

(t) the Applicant commits or has committed Prohibited Act.

15.2 Subject to clauses 15.3 to 15.8(inclusive), where an Event of Default has 
occurred the Council may by notice in writing to the Applicant:

(a) suspend the payment of funding under this Agreement for such period 
as the Council shall determine; and/or

(b) vary the Maximum Sum and/or any Individual Maximum Sum in which 
case (subject to the provisions of clause 12.3 (Variation) and provided 

Page 186



28

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

no other Event of Default has occurred and is continuing) the payment of 
funding shall thereafter be made in accordance with the variation notified 
to the Applicant; and/or

(c) terminate this Agreement whereupon the Council shall cease to be 
under any obligation to provide any further funding to the Applicant 
under this Agreement; and/or

(d) require the Applicant to repay the whole or any part of the funding 
previously paid to the Applicant plus Interest and the Applicant agrees 
that upon receipt of notice requiring repayment pursuant to this clause 
15.2(d) it shall repay the sums required as a debt within twenty (20) 
Working Days of receipt of such notice.

15.3 If the Council suspends the payment of funding pursuant to sub-clause 
15.2(a) by reason only of the occurrence of an Event of Default specified in 
sub-clause 15.1(e) which is, in the opinion of the Council, capable of remedy 
and the Applicant, after notice in writing from the Council, remedies the 
relevant breach to the satisfaction of the Council within such period as the 
Council shall set out in the notice the Council shall not (subject to the other 
provisions of this Agreement) continue such suspension after the Applicant 
shall have remedied the relevant breach within such period.

15.4 Subject to clause 15.5 the Council shall not by reason only of the occurrence 
of an Event of Default specified in sub-clause 15.1(e) which is, in the opinion 
of the Council, capable of remedy, exercise its rights under sub-clauses 
15.2(b) to 15.2(d) (inclusive) unless the Council first gives notice in writing to 
the Applicant requiring the relevant breach to be remedied within such period 
as the Council shall set out in the notice and the Applicant shall have failed to 
remedy the said breach to the satisfaction of the Council within such period.

15.5 The provisions of clause 15.3 or 15.4 above shall not apply where the Council 
has prior to the occurrence of an Event of Default had occasion to give notice 
on the occurrence of a previous Event of Default to the Applicant under either 
clause 15.3 or 15.4 above.

15.6 The exercise by the Council of its rights under sub-clause 15.2 in respect of 
an Event of Default shall not preclude the exercise thereafter by the Council of 
any other rights which it may have under sub-clause 15.2 in respect of the 
same Event of Default.

15.7 The exercise by the Council of its rights under sub-clause 15.2 shall be 
without prejudice to any other right of action or remedy of the Council in 
respect of any breach by the Applicant of the provisions of this Agreement.

15.8 Without prejudice to the Council’s rights under sub-clause 15.2, on the 
occurrence of an Event of Default specified in sub-clause 15.1(h), the Council 

Page 187



29

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

shall determine whether to continue to support the Project by considering the 
following matters:

(a) whether cost increases or delays were unforeseeable and/or 
unavoidable;

(b) if the Applicant can fund any cost increase resources other than the 
Grant;

(c) whether additional funding has been sought from sources other than the 
Council;

(d) if the scale of the Project can be reduced to fit the available budget;

(e) the impact of any cost increase on the Project’s value for money 
assessment;

(f) whether any delay can be accommodated within the programme for 
delivery of the Project; and

(g) any other relevant factors.

PART G – GENERAL PROVISIONS

16. Exclusion of Liability

16.1 The Council shall not be liable to the other party (so far as permitted by law) 
for direct or indirect special or consequential loss or damage in connection 
with this Agreement or for any loss of or damage to profit, revenue, contracts, 
anticipated savings, goodwill or business opportunities, in each case whether 
direct or indirect.

16.2 With respect to other claims so far as permitted by law the Council shall under 
no circumstances whatever be liable to the Applicant whether in contract, tort 
(including negligence), breach of statutory duty, or otherwise for any losses 
arising under or in connection with this Agreement.

16.3 Nothing in this Agreement shall exclude or limit either party's liability for death 
or personal injury caused by its negligence or any other liability which cannot 
be limited or excluded by law.

16.4 The Applicant shall be solely responsible for the successful Completion and 
any failure to complete the Project shall be borne entirely by the Applicant and 
shall not be the responsibility of the Council or the LEP.

17. Publicity

17.1 Marketing Material

The Applicant shall:

Page 188



30

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

(a) comply fully at all times with the Communications Protocol as set out in 
the LEP Assurance Framework;

(b) comply with the requirement that all signage and other marketing 
material shall feature the LEP Logo alongside that of the Applicant and, 
where appropriate, any other funder’s logo (as required);and

(c) comply with requirements relating to media handling as set out in the 
Communications Protocol.

17.2 Council Logo

(a) The Council grants the Applicant during the term of this Agreement a 
non-exclusive licence to use the Council Logo only for the purposes set 
out in sub-clause 17.1 (Marketing Material). The Applicant shall not 
assign or grant sub-licences of this licence or any part of it and shall not 
use the Council Logo for any other purpose.

(b) The Applicant acknowledges that the Council Logo is owned by and 
shall remain the property of the Council. The Applicant shall not acquire 
any further or other rights in respect of the Council Logo by reason of the 
exercise of the rights granted by this Agreement.

(c) As necessary, the Council may require the Applicant to enter into a 
parallel arrangement with the LEP regarding use of the LEP Logo.

18. Reputation of the Council

The Applicant shall not, and shall procure that its suppliers and contractors 
shall not, knowingly do or omit to do, anything in relation to this Agreement, 
the Project or in the course of their other activities, which may bring the 
standing of the Council into disrepute or attract adverse publicity for the 
Council.

19. Assignment and Subcontracting

19.1 This Agreement is personal to the Applicant who shall not, without the prior 
written consent of the Council (in its absolute discretion), assign, transfer, 
charge or deal in any other manner with this Agreement or its rights under it or 
part of it, or purport to do any of the same, or sub-contract any or all of its 
obligations under this Agreement. Any such consent if given may be made 
subject to any conditions which the Council considers necessary.

19.2 The Council may withdraw its consent to any sub-contracting where it has 
reasonable grounds to no longer approve the sub-contract or the sub-
contracting arrangement and where these grounds have been presented in 
writing to the Applicant.

Page 189



31

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

19.3 The Applicant shall be liable for the acts, omissions and negligence of its sub-
contractors and shall ensure that terms equivalent to those contained in this 
Agreement are passed on to sub-contractors.

19.4 To the extent that it is compatible with EU Procurement Requirements, the 
Applicant (and its sub-contractors) shall ensure that the Social Value Act 2012 
is observed in any procurement processes.

20. Status of Applicant

20.1 In carrying out its obligations under this Agreement the Applicant agrees that 
it will be acting for its own account as principal and not as the agent or partner 
of the Council.

20.2 The Applicant shall not say or do anything which may pledge the credit of or 
otherwise bind Council or that may lead any other person to believe that the 
Applicant is acting as the agent of Council.

20.3 None of the Applicant's employees, secondees or sub-contractors shall at any 
time be regarded as employees of the Council.

21. Notices

21.1 Subject to clause 1.2 (b), any notice required to be served under this 
Agreement shall be in writing, served, in the case of notice served upon the 
Council, by personal delivery or by sending it by recorded postal delivery to  
PO Box 78, County Hall, Fishergate, Preston, Lancashire PR1 8XJ marked for 
the attention of Director of Development and Corporate Services or such other 
address as shall from time to time be notified in writing by the Council to the 
Applicant, and in the case of notice to be served upon the Applicant by 
delivering or sending it to the address specified in this Agreement or such 
other address as shall from time to time be notified in writing by the Applicant  
to the Council in the same manner.

21.2 Any such written notice shall (where sent by post) be deemed to have been 
served and received on the second business day following the day of posting 
and where delivered personally be deemed to have been given at the time of 
delivery.

21.3 If the Applicant shall comprise more than one person the service of any notice 
demand request or other communication on any one of such persons shall 
constitute good service on all of them.

22. Prevention of Bribery 

22.1 The Applicant: 

(a) shall not, and shall procure that any of its staff  shall not, in connection 
with this Agreement commit a Prohibited Act;

Page 190



32

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

(b) warrants, represents and undertakes that it is not aware of any financial 
or other advantage being given to any person working for or engaged by 
the Council or the LEP, or that an agreement has been reached to that 
effect, in connection with the execution of this Agreement, excluding any 
arrangement of which full details have been disclosed in writing to the 
Council before execution of this Agreement.

22.2 The Applicant shall:

(a) if requested, provide the Council with any reasonable assistance, at the 
Council 's reasonable cost, to enable the Council to perform any activity 
required by any relevant government or agency in any relevant 
jurisdiction for the purpose of compliance with the Bribery Act 2010;

(b)  if so requested within fourteen (14) Working Days of the Agreement 
Date, and annually thereafter, certify to the Council  in writing (such 
certification to be signed by an officer of the Applicant ) compliance with 
this clause 22 by the Applicant; The Applicant  shall provide such 
supporting evidence of compliance as the Authority may reasonably 
request.

22.3 The Applicant shall have an anti-bribery policy (which shall be disclosed to the 
Council) to prevent the Applicant or its staff from committing a Prohibited Act 
and shall enforce it where appropriate.

22.4 If any breach of clause 22.1 is suspected or known, the Applicant must notify 
the Council immediately.

22.5 If the Applicant   notifies the Council that it suspects or knows that there may 
be a breach of clause 22.1, the Applicant must respond promptly to the 
Council's enquiries, co-operate with any investigation, and allow the Council 
to audit books, records and any other relevant documentation. This obligation 
shall continue for 7 years following the expiry or termination of this 
Agreement.

22.6 The Council may terminate this Agreement by written notice with immediate 
effect if the Applicant or its personnel (in all cases whether or not acting with 
the Applicant's knowledge) breaches clause 22.1. In determining whether to 
exercise the right of termination under this clause 22.6, the Council  shall give 
all due consideration, where appropriate, to action other than termination of 
this Agreement unless the Prohibited Act is committed by  a senior officer of 
the Applicant  or by an employee of the Applicant not acting independently of 
the Applicant . The expression "not acting independently of" (when used in 
relation to the Applicant) means and shall be construed as acting: 

(a) with the authority; or,  

(b) with the actual knowledge of any one or more of the directors of the 
Applicant (as the case may be); or  

Page 191



33

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

(c) in circumstances where any one or more of the directors of the Applicant  
ought reasonably to have had knowledge.

22.7 Any notice of termination under clause 22.6 must specify:

(a) the nature of the Prohibited Act;

(b) the identity of the party whom the  Council believes has committed the 
Prohibited Act; and

(c) the date on which this Agreement will terminate.

22.8 Notwithstanding the provisions of clause 26 (Dispute Resolution), any dispute 
relating to:

(a) the interpretation of clause 22; or

(b) the amount or value of any gift, consideration or commission,

shall be determined by the Council  and its decision shall be final and 
conclusive.

22.9 Any termination under clause 22.6 will be without prejudice to any right or 
remedy which has already accrued or subsequently accrues to the Council.

23. Jurisdiction

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 
Law of England and the parties submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the 
English Courts.

24. Survival of this Agreement

24.1 Insofar as any of the rights and powers of the Council provided for in this 
Agreement shall or may be exercised or exercisable after the termination or 
expiry of this Agreement, the provisions of this Agreement conferring such 
rights and powers shall survive and remain in full force and effect 
notwithstanding such termination or expiry.

24.2 Insofar as any of the obligations of the Applicant provided for in this 
Agreement remain to be discharged after the termination or expiry of this 
Agreement, the provisions of this Agreement shall survive and remain in full 
force and effect notwithstanding such termination or expiry.

24.3 Any provisions of this Agreement as are necessary to give effect to this 
Clause 24 are expressly agreed by the parties to survive the termination or 
expiry of this Agreement.

25. [Provisions Relating to State Aid

25.1  Provision of State funds to the Applicant is made in accordance with 

Page 192



34

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

(a) the Commission Regulation (EU) No 651/2014 of 17 June 2014 (General 
Block Exemption Regulation (GBER)) declaring certain categories of aid 
compatible with the internal market in application of Articles 107 and 108 
of the Treaty; and

(b) the European Guidelines on regional State aid for 2014-2020; and

(c) any other relevant and applicable law relating to State Aid

25.2 In compliance with the requirement of the Commission for providers of aid 
under GBER to notify the Commission via the State aid Interactive System 
(SANI), the [Council] has registered the [ Growth Deal 3 Programme]’, case 
reference SA.[         ] with the European Commission. Projects in receipt of 
State aid under GBER will be recorded under this scheme. Details can be 
found on the LEP website  [http://nelep.co.uk/funding/north-east-growth-deal/.]  

[Or

25.3 Provision of State Funds to the Applicant is made in a non-aid basis based on 
the statement provided within the approved Business Case that XX.

[OR

25.4 [Other State aid compliant route as advised following State aid assessment]

25.5 To secure transparency that the Funding will be exclusively for the Works as 
set out within the approved Business Case, the Funding shall be ringfenced 
within the Applicants accounts.

25.6 The Applicant shall comply with all applicable European Union Regulations 
and Guidance in relation to State aid and shall ensure that all requirements for 
the application of GBER are met including those relating to monitoring, aid 
intensities and maximum aid thresholds. 

25.7 No payments shall be made to the Applicant if it becomes subject to a 
recovery order following a previous EU Commission decision declaring any 
aid illegal and incompatible with the internal market. 

25.8 The Applicant confirms that it is not a company in difficulty as defined in 
Article 2 (18) of GBER and commits to informing the Council as soon as 
reasonably practicable of any change in this status. The Council reserves the 
right to terminate this Agreement if the Applicant’s status changes. 

25.9 The Council confirms that, prior to the start of the Project, an application was 
submitted by the Applicant which confirmed the Applicant’s name and size; 
description of the Project, including its start and end dates; location of the 
Project; list of Project costs;  type of aid and amount of public funding 
required.

Page 193



35

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

25.10 The Applicant has informed the Council of any other public funding applied for 
or awarded against the Eligible Expenditure covered by this Agreement. The 
Council has ensured that the total public funding for the Project is within the 
amounts permitted by GBER. 

25.11 In accordance with Clause 25.2 above the NECA is responsible for informing 
the EU Commission of aid awards to the Applicant, including summary 
notification of the aid to the Commission via the electronic notification system 
and publication of details of the aid as required from 1st July 2016. 

25.12 [for award in excess of €500,000: The Applicant consents to the publication of 
the following information: Name of the Applicant, Applicant’s identifier, type of 
enterprise (SME/large) at the time of granting, region in which the Applicant is 
located, at NUTS level 2, sector of activity at NACE group level, aid element, 
expressed as full amount in national currency, aid instrument, date of 
granting, objective of aid, granting authority, reference of the aid measure. For 
schemes under Articles 16 and 21, name of the entrusted entity, and the 
names of the selected financial intermediaries.] 

25.13 The Council and the Applicant are jointly and individually responsible for 
maintaining detailed records with the information and supporting 
documentation necessary to establish that all the conditions set out in this 
Agreement and the GBER are fulfilled. Such records shall be maintained for 
10 (ten) years following the granting of the aid and shall be made available to 
the EU Commission within a period of 20 working days if requested. 

25.14 The Council may monitor the Applicant’s compliance with the requirements of 
clause 25.9 and for the avoidance of doubt any failure to comply with such 
requirements (where applicable) shall be deemed an Event of Default for the 
purposes of clause 15.1(g) as informed by clause 6.1 (a) (ii). 

25.15 Further to clause 15.2, the Council may vary or withhold any or all of the 
Funding and/or require repayment of the Funding already paid, together with 
Interest from the date of payment of the Funding, if the Council is required to 
do so as a result of a decision by the EU Commission in relation to a breach 
of State Aid law. 

26. Dispute Resolution

26.1 All disputes and differences arising out of or in connection with this 
Agreement (a “Dispute”) shall be resolved pursuant to the terms of this 
Clause 26 (Dispute Resolution).

26.2 In the event that a party to this Agreement considers that a Dispute exists in 
relation to this Agreement, such party shall serve a notice upon the other 
party (a “Notice of Dispute”) giving brief details of the Dispute and in the first 
instance the parties shall use their reasonable endeavours to resolve such 

Page 194



36

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

Dispute amicably and in good faith and in accordance with this Clause 26 
(Dispute Resolution).  

26.3 Representatives of the parties shall meet within five (5) Working Days (or 
such other longer period not exceeding twenty (20) Working Days as those 
parties may agree) of receipt of a Notice of Dispute.

26.4 Where no representatives of the parties are available to meet within the 
period set out in clause 26.3, or the representatives fail to agree a unanimous 
resolution of the Dispute at such meeting, the Dispute shall be referred to the 
chief executives (or nominated deputies) of the Parties (the “Senior 
Executives”).

26.5 The Senior Executives shall meet within ten (10) Business Days (or such 
other longer period not exceeding twenty (20) Business Days as the disputing 
parties may agree) of such referral to attempt to resolve the Dispute. Any 
unanimous resolution of the Senior Executives shall be recorded in writing 
and signed by them and shall be final and binding unless those parties agree 
otherwise.

26.6 Where the Senior Executives are unable to meet within the period set out in 
clause 26.5, or the Senior Executives fail to agree a unanimous resolution of 
the Dispute at such meeting, the Dispute shall be finally resolved in the 
English Courts, which the parties agree shall have exclusive jurisdiction to 
settle the Dispute in accordance with English law as specified in clause 23. 

27. Miscellaneous

27.1 Nothing in this Agreement shall constitute a partnership or joint venture or 
agency between the parties hereto for any purpose whatsoever and the 
Applicant must not represent itself to others as an agent of the Council.

27.2 A certificate by the Council as to any sum payable hereunder by the Applicant 
shall be conclusive save in the case of manifest error.

27.3 Without prejudice to clause 12.3 (Variations) this Agreement may only be 
amended by a written document signed by the Council and the Applicant.

27.4 If at any time any of the provisions of this Agreement become illegal, invalid or 
unenforceable in any respect under any law or regulation of any jurisdiction, 
neither the legality, validity or enforceability of the remaining provisions of this 
Agreement shall be in any way affected or impaired as a result.

27.5 Nothing in this Agreement nor any other document shall impose any 
obligation or liability on the Council with respect to any actions of or 
obligations or liabilities assumed or incurred by the Applicant or its agents, 
contractors or employees whether under contract, statute or otherwise.

Page 195



37

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

27.6 Any approval by the Council or any person on behalf of the Council pursuant 
to this Agreement of any matter submitted by the Applicant for approval shall 
not be deemed to be an Acknowledgment by the Council of the correctness or 
suitability of the contents of the subject of the approval or consent.

27.7 The fact that the Council or its representatives have supplied or received any 
documents or Information or attended any meeting shall not in itself imply 
approval of any matters raised in any such document, information or meeting 
or relieve the Applicant of any obligation or liability in respect of the Project or 
otherwise.

27.8 Nothing in this Agreement shall affect the coming into force or the 
continuance in force of any provision of this Agreement which is expressly or 
by implication to come into force or continue in force upon termination or 
expiry of this Agreement.

27.9 No failure or delay on the part of the Council in exercising any right or power 
or remedy and no course of dealing between the parties hereto shall operate 
as a waiver nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right or power or 
remedy of the Council prevent or restrict any other or further exercise thereof 
or the exercise of any other right or power or remedy of the Council. The 
rights powers and remedies of the Council are cumulative and not exclusive of 
any rights powers or remedies which the Council would otherwise have.

27.10 Nothing contained in or done under this Agreement and no consents given by 
the Council shall prejudice any of the Council's rights, powers remedies or 
duties and/or obligations in the exercise of its functions or under any statutes, 
bye-laws, instruments orders or regulations.

27.11 The Council shall not be liable to the Applicant for any advice given by a 
representative of the Council. In addition, the Council gives no assurance as 
to the suitability or viability of the Project and no endorsement of the same.

27.12 Nothing in this Agreement shall confer any rights or obligations on any person 
who has not executed this Agreement nor shall the consent of any person 
who has not so executed this Agreement be needed to make any 
modification, amendment, variation or release of the terms hereof. The parties 
to this Agreement expressly agree for the purposes of the Contracts (Rights of 
Third Parties) Act 1999 that they do not intend any person other than a party 
to this Agreement to be able to enforce any term of this Agreement.

27.13 Any consent, agreement or approval of the Council shall be in the Council's 
absolute discretion and may be given subject to such restrictions, terms or 
conditions as the Council may impose.

27.14 This Agreement and the documents referred to in it, constitute the entire 
agreement between the parties and supersede and replace any previous 

Page 196



38

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

agreement, understanding, representation or arrangement of any nature 
between the parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS of which this Agreement has been executed by the parties as a Deed 
and is intended to be and is delivered on the date first above written

Page 197



39

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

SCHEDULE 1

Definitions

Agreement Date means the date of this Agreement 

Applicable Laws means any applicable law, statute, bye-law, 
regulation, order, regulatory policy, guidance or 
industry code, rule of court or directives, conditions, 
rules or requirements of any regulatory body or 
relevant authority, delegated or subordinate 
legislation or notice of any regulatory body, including 
State Aid law, European Union law and EU 
Procurement Requirements, where applicable

Assets means all assets, materials, items, objects, 
equipment, software, furniture which are to be 
purchased, installed, commissioned or tested as part 
of the Project 

Building Contract means the [                  ] relating to the Development 
made between the Applicant and [ ], or any other 
permitted replacement, design  and/or build 
agreement entered into as a deed in a form and 
substance acceptable to the Council

Business Case means the Applicant's business case (both outline or 
detailed), business plan submitted to, and 
independently appraised and approved by, the LEP 
and the Council for funding as set out in Part B to 
Schedule 2 (the Project) and all additional and 
subsequent information, clarification, representations 
made in any meetings with the LEP or the Council or 
documents which have been provided by the 
Applicant in support of such application for funding 

Change Request 
Form

means the Form by which the Applicant notifies the 
Council of a Material Alteration pursuant to Clause 5

Completion means completion of the Project (which includes any 
Works, the purchase, installation, testing, 
commissioning, and acceptance of any Assets and/or 
the completion of any services or training] in each 
case to the satisfaction of the Council

Consents includes any approval, authorisation, consent, 
exemption, licence, permit, permission or registration 

Page 198



40

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

by of or from any governmental or other authority or 
any person including but not limited to consents 
required from the Applicant's landlord (if any), any 
adjoining owner or any mortgagee of the Site or from 
the local planning authority in relation to the Project 
or any part thereof or otherwise required to enable 
the same to be lawfully carried out and maintained

Contract Manager means the Growth Deal Programme Manager of PO 
Box 78, County Hall, Fishergate, Preston, Lancashire 
PR1 8XJ (email: growthdeal@lancashire.gov.uk) or 
such other person as the Council may notify to the 
Applicant in writing

Cost Overrun means expenditure incurred or to be incurred in 
relation to the Project, which is above that which has 
been agreed in the Expenditure Profile

Council Logo the Council's logo in such form as may be provided 
to the Applicant by Council upon request.

Development means the element or proportion of the Works which 
the Employer’s Agent alone is responsible for 
monitoring;

Employer's Agent means the relevant professional approved by the 
Council, and appointed by the Applicant, who is 
instructed to act independently of the Applicant to 
monitor the progress of the Development. The 
discretion of such professional shall not be fettered 
by the Applicant, and/or anyone acting on behalf of 
the Applicant, whilst undertaking its services under 
this appointment including but not limited to:

(a) monitoring progress of the Development;

(b) preparing the Employer's Agent Initial 
Report; and

(c) issuing the Employer's Agent 
Certificates.

Employer's Agent 
Certificate

means a document prepared by the Employer's 
Agent and addressed to the Council, in a form and 
substance satisfactory in all respects to the Council, 
confirming, in relation the Development:

(a) the value of the work in progress;

(b) the expenditure incurred (for which payment is 

Page 199



41

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

requested) is in accordance with the 
Expenditure Profile;

(c) the Development is progressing in accordance 
with the Expenditure Profile;

(d) there is no outstanding Cost Overrun;

(e) the undrawn proportion of the Grant (which 
relates to the Development), together with the 
undrawn proportion of any other funding 
streams detailed in the Expenditure Profile, is 
sufficient to meet the remaining costs for 
completing the Development

Employer's Agent 
Initial Report

means a report addressed to the Council from the 
Employer's Agent confirming that any conditions to 
be fulfilled or agreed, or any of the Consents required 
prior to commencement of the Development, have 
been fulfilled and/or obtained and timescales and 
costs set out in the the Expenditure Profile are 
realistic, the Employer's Requirements and 
Contractor's Proposals are reasonable and are 
representative of the requirements and proposals 
which a competent surveyor would ordinarily expect 
for a  development of the scale and nature of the 
Development

Employer's 
Requirements and 
Contractor's 
Proposals

means those requirements and proposals set out in 
the Building Contract

End Date means the Completion of the Project, as notified by 
the Applicant and the Employer's Agent to the 
Council in accordance with clause 6.8

Environmental 
Information 
Regulations

means the Environmental Information Regulations 
2004

EU Procurement 
Requirements

means all requirements based on EU Directive 
2014/24/EU OJL 94/65 of 28.03.2014 and principles 
of equal treatment, non-discrimination, transparency 
and fairness inherent in the Treaty for the 
Functioning of the European Union and including the 

Page 200



42

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

Public Contract Regulations 2015

Event of Default means any of the events or circumstances described 
in clause 15.1

Exit Report means the exit report in the form annexed as 
Schedule 5 (Exit Report)

Expenditure Profile means the profile detailing how Qualifying 
Expenditure will be incurred as comprised in 
Schedule 3 (Qualifying Expenditure) and as 
amended from time to time with the prior written 
consent of the Council

Financial Year 1 April – 31 March

FOIA means the Freedom of Information Act 2000, as 
amended or replaced from time to time, and any 
subordinate legislation made thereunder from time to 
time together with any guidance and/or codes of 
practice issued pursuant to or in relation to such 
legislation

Grant means the funding up to the Maximum Sum payable 
pursuant to this Agreement as set out in Schedule 3 
(Qualifying Expenditure)

Grant Claim Date means the date on which a claim for Grant instalment 
is to be submitted in respect of each Quarter 
pursuant to clause 11.6(a)(iv)

Group means any subsidiary or holding company of the 
Applicant or any subsidiary of such holding company 
(where subsidiary and holding company have the 
meanings given to such terms in section 1159 
Companies Act 2006)

Independent 
Assessment Report

The Report dated [      ] as set out in Part C of 
Schedule 2 (the Project)]

Individual Initial 
Estimated 
Qualifying 
Expenditure

means the individual initial estimated qualifying 
expenditures indicated against the heads of 
Qualifying Expenditure in Schedule 3 (Qualifying 
Expenditure) which in aggregate comprise the Initial 
Estimated Qualifying Expenditure

Individual 
Maximum Sums

means the individual maximum sums indicated 
against the heads of Qualifying Expenditure in 
Schedule 3 (Expenditure Profile) (within the tolerance 
referred to in clause 5.4 (c) or as adjusted under 

Page 201



43

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

clause 12.3) which in aggregate comprises the 
Maximum Sum

Initial Estimated 
Qualifying 
Expenditure

means the initial estimated qualifying expenditure set 
out in Schedule 3 (Qualifying Expenditure)

Information has the meaning given under section 84 of the FOIA

Insolvency Event in relation to a party, any of the following events:

(a) it is or admits that it is unable to pay its debts 
as defined in section 123 Insolvency Act 1986;

(b) it takes any step with a view to renegotiating 
or compromising in satisfaction of its debts 
(including by way of a scheme of arrangement 
or creditors voluntary arrangement), except for 
the purposes of a bona fide solvent 
reconstruction or amalgamation;

(c) any step is taken (whether a notice, petition, 
resolution, order or otherwise) in relation to its 
winding up, and (where capable of being set 
aside) is not set aside within seven (7) 
Working Days;

(d) any person becomes entitled to appoint an 
administrator, administrative receiver or 
receiver, enforce any security interest it has or 
take any other valid steps to enforce a debt, in 
each case in relation to that party or any of its 
assets;

(e) any step is taken (including by way of an 
application, petition or notice of intention) to 
appoint a liquidator, administrator, receiver or 
administrative receiver, or any such officer is 
appointed, in each case over that party or any 
of its assets;

(f) any other valid step is taken to enforce any 
security interest or otherwise enforce any debt 
in relation to that party or any of its assets;

(g) it ceases or suspends or threatens to cease or 
suspend all or any material part of its business 
or payment of any of its debts (other than due 
to a bona fide dispute); or

Page 202



44

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

(h) any step is taken in any jurisdiction that is the 
same or similar in effect to any of those set out 
above.

Interest means 100 per cent basis points above the 
Reference Rate on the date of payment as  
calculated in accordance with European Commission 
Communication on the calculation of reference and 
discount rates 2008/C 14/02

Intellectual 
Property Rights

means all patents, know-how, registered trade 
marks, registered designs, utility models, applications 
and rights to apply for any of the foregoing 
unregistered design rights, unregistered trade marks, 
rights to prevent passing off for unfair competition 
and copyright, database rights, topography rights and 
any other rights in any invention discovery or process 
in each case in the United Kingdom and all other 
countries in the world and together with all renewals 
and extensions

LEP means the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership Limited 
(CRN: 07388600) of County Hall, Preston, 
Lancashire PR1 8XJ

LEP Logo the LEP's logo in such form as may be provided to 
the Applicant by the Council upon request.

Longstop Date means [      ] 

Material Alteration means an alteration as detailed in clause 5

Maximum Sum means £[   ] (as may be adjusted under sub-clause 
12.3)

Monitoring Officer means the Finance Director of the Applicant, being 
the monitoring officer appointed by the Applicant for 
the Project pursuant to clause 6.14(b) or his 
replacement from time to time notified to and 
approved by the Council in writing

Prohibited Act means:

(a) offering, giving or agreeing to give to any servant 
of the Council any gift or consideration of any kind as 
an inducement or reward for:

(i) doing or not doing (or for having done 
or not having done) any act in relation to the 

Page 203



45

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

obtaining or performance of this Agreement or 
any other agreement contract with the  Council; 
or

(ii) showing or not showing favour or 
disfavour to any person in relation to this 
Agreement or any other agreement contract 
with the Council ;

(b) entering into this Agreement or any other 
agreementcontract with the Council where a 
commission has been paid or has been agreed to be 
paid by the Applicant or on its behalf, or to its 
knowledge, unless before the relevant contract is 
entered into particulars of any such commission and 
of the terms and conditions of any such agreement 
for the payment thereof have been disclosed in 
writing to the Council;

(c) committing any offence:

(i) under the Bribery Act 2010;

(ii) under legislation creating offences in 
respect of fraudulent acts; or

(iii) at common law in respect of fraudulent 
acts in relation to this Agreement or any other 
agreementcontract with  the  Council ; or

(iv)  defrauding or attempting to defraud or 
conspiring to defraud the Council.

Project means the project and the activities more particularly 
described in Schedule 2 (The Project)

Project 
Assessment 
Criteria

means the Lancashire Growth Deal  project 
assessment criteria of strategic relevance, economic 
impact, employment creation, housing growth, private 
leverage, deliverability and scalability as applicable 
or as communicated to the Applicant by the Council

Project Manager means [            ] of Applicant, being the project 
manager appointed by the Applicant for the Project or 
his replacement from time to time notified to and 
approved by the Council in writing

Project Manager 
and Monitoring 

means a certificate prepared by the Project Manager 
and the Monitoring Officer and addressed to the 
Council, in a form and substance satisfactory in all 

Page 204



46

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

Officer Certificate respects to the Council, confirming that:

a) Qualifying Expenditure has been incurred;

b) the Project will be delivered and 
outcomes/milestones achieved within 
budget/delivery timescale of the Project;

c) the terms of this Agreement  have been 
satisfied;

d) only declared public funds have been used 
in relation to the Project; 

e) there is no outstanding Cost Overrun other 
than one which falls below the threshold of a 
Material Alteration or one which has been 
notified to the Council via a Change Request 
Form and has been approved by the Council;

Project Milestones means the project milestones detailed in Schedule 2 
(including the Business Plan at Part B of Schedule 2)

Project Outcomes means the project outcomes detailed in Schedule 2 
(including the Business Plan at Part B of Schedule 2)

           Project Outputs means the project outputs detailed in Schedule 2 
(including the Business Plan at Part B of Schedule 2)

Public Sector 
Financial 
Assistance

means any funding received or receivable by the 
Applicant from public sector bodies including for this 
purpose funding from the European Commission, 
government bodies (whether national or local) or 
bodies in receipt of lottery funds from the National 
Lottery Distribution Fund pursuant to the National 
Lotteries Acts 1993 and 1998

Qualifying 
Expenditure

means costs (estimated to be in total the Initial 
Estimated Qualifying Expenditure) which the Council 
is satisfied have been reasonably and properly 
incurred and paid by the Applicant in completing the 
Project, in accordance with the Business Case and/or 
as directed by the Council, which fall under the 
Expenditure Profile listed in Schedule 3 
(Expenditure Profile)

Quarter means, in each Financial Year, 30 June, 30 

Page 205



47

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

September, 31 December and 31 March

Request for 
Information

has the meaning in the FOIA or any apparent request 
for information under the FOIA, the Environmental 
Information Regulations or the Code of Practice on 
Access to Government Information (2nd Edition)

Revenue means any income or revenue received by the 
Applicant from any source as a result of or in 
connection with the Project which has not been taken 
into account by the Council in appraising the Project

Site means the new premises of the Applicant at [      ]

Sustainable 
Development

means social progress which recognises the needs 
of everyone, effective protection of the environment, 
prudent use of natural resources and economic 
development that is inclusive, efficient and stable

Termination Date means any date of early termination of this 
Agreement in accordance with clause 15 (Events of 
Default, Remedies, and Termination

Transaction List means an itemised  list of individual transactions of 
expenditure  relating to a particular claim for an 
instalment of Grant which details, in respect of each 
individual transaction,:

a) the nature of the payment;
b) the name of the contractor/ supplier;
c) the unique reference number;
d) the transaction date;
e) the invoice amount together with VAT (shown 

separately);
f) the date of payment of the invoice; and
g) any other information related to the transaction 

which the Council reasonably requests

State Aid means the law embodied in Articles 107-109 of 
Section 2, Title VII of the Common Rules on 
Competition, Taxation and Approximation of Laws – 
Consolidated versions of the Treaty on the European 
Union and the Treaty on the Functioning of the 
European Union (2008/C 115/01)

the Works means the engineering or construction works and/or 
any activities in relation to any Assets, or at the Site, 
described in Schedule 2 (The Project) as varied 

Page 206



48

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

pursuant to any consent given by the Council under 
clause 5 (Changes to the Project)

Working Day means any day other than a Saturday, a Sunday, a 
day which is a bank holiday in England or any day 
between 23rd December and 2nd January inclusive 
in each year and "Working Days" shall be construed 
accordingly

Page 207



49

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

 

SCHEDULE 2

The Project

SCHEDULE 2

The Project

Part A – The Project

The Project to be delivered by the Applicant involves:

[DN: A brief summary of the Project should be included here.]

Project Outputs

[DN:Insert from Business Case]

Project Milestones

[DN:Insert from Business Case]

Project Outcomes

[ DN:Insert from Business Case  ]

Part B – The Business Case

[ DN: Insert Link to a full copy of the Business Case]

 

Part C – The Independent Assessment Report by Skills Funding Agency and 
LEP of Detailed Business Case

 

PART D – LEP Approval  

Page 208



50

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

Page 209



51

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

SCHEDULE 3

Expenditure Profile

Sch 3  Expenditure 
Profile .xlsx

Page 210



52

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

Page 211



53

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

SCHEDULE 4

The Claim Form

 

 

Part A Financial 
Info Sept 2016.xlsx

Part B Progress 
Report Sept 2016.docx

Part C Employers 
Agent Certificate.docx

Part D Project 
Manager and Monitoring Officer Certificate.docx

Page 212



54

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

SCHEDULE 5

Exit Report

The Applicant shall provide evidence to the Council that:

1. Completion has occurred in accordance with this Agreement (as varied where 
applicable).

2. The Project is completed in accordance with this Agreement (as varied where 
applicable).

3. Where enforcement action or requirements have been imposed by the 
Council in accordance with this Agreement that these have been implemented 
and complied with.

4. Financial completion has occurred and a record and reconciliation of actual 
expenditure to approved expenditure is attached.

5. No funds have been recovered by the Council.  Details of any funds 
recovered or recoverable by the Council is attached.

6. The Applicant has submitted a final claim to the Council.

7. All of the deliverables and outcomes of the Project have been achieved in 
accordance with this Agreement, or where this is not the case, the actual 
delivery of outcomes of the Project.

8. The Applicant undertakes to use the Site for the purposes of the Project and 
arrange for a definite programme of future reviews of the Site by the Council.

The Applicant shall provide the following attachments to the Exit Report:

1. Reconciliation of actual Project expenditure to original (or amended) forecast.

2. Reconciliation of actual outputs to original or amended and agreed forecast.

3. Evidence of Completion of the Project.

4. Final Claim.

5. Any other attachment required by Council (for example where the Agreement 
has been varied or where any default enforcement action has been taken – 
details of compliance with the same).

Page 213



55

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

SCHEDULE 6

Change Request Form

Scheduel 6 Change 
Request Form.docx

Page 214



56

AGO/COMU/2006843/3/6970787-246310716-1

EXECUTED (but not delivered until the 
date hereof)

)

AS A DEED by affixing )

THE COMMON SEAL of )

LANCASHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL )

In the presence of: )

Authorised Signatory

EXECUTED (but not delivered until the 
date hereof)

)

AS A DEED by [APPLICANT] )

by: )

Page 215



Page 216



LEP – Sub Committee

LEP - Growth Deal Management Board

Private and Confidential: NO

Wednesday, 11 October 2017

Social Value

Appendix A refers

Report Author: Dr M Lawty-Jones, Director of the Lancashire Skills & Employment Hub, 
michele.Lawty-Jones@lancashire.gov.uk 

Executive Summary

The purpose of this report is to provide a summary of progress made since the last 
meeting of the Growth Deal Management Board.

Recommendation

The Board is invited to comment on the dashboard and support the proposal that 
social value is integrated into the broader evaluation, including the production of 
case studies that can be inserted into the Social Value toolkit.

Background and Advice 

1. Background and Advice 

1.1 The Growth Deal Management Board is committed to maximising the social 
value benefits of the individual projects that form part of the Growth Deal 
Programme, and the social value benefits across the Growth Deal Programme.

1.2 In order to realise this commitment, a Social Value toolkit for applicants was 
developed, articulating the LEP's expectations in relation to social value which 
align with the Lancashire Skills and Employment Strategic Framework and thus 
established strategic priorities.  In addition a process for agreeing indicative 
outputs and monitoring progress has been embedded within the process for 
business case development and ongoing contract management.  

Page 217

Agenda Item 16



2. Social Value Toolkit

2.1 The Social Value toolkit can be accessed via the LEP Website. The toolkit is 
a working document and will be updated as appropriate as the programme 
develops; including additional case studies and sources of support for 
applicants.  An exercise is currently underway to check the sources of support 
are still current as the directory was compiled late last calendar year.

2.2 The toolkit, combined with a reporting structure, enables both the projects and 
programme as a whole to realise / demonstrate Lancashire's Growth Deal social 
value impact.

3. Social Value Metrics / Reporting – Update

3.1 Of the 30 live projects within the programme:

 27 - have returned their completed social value reporting template
 22 - are 'forecasting' social value activity
 18 - are reporting 'actual' social value activity

3.2 A dashboard has been developed to highlight key metrics and progress to-date 
– see Appendix A.  It is intended that the metrics be updated on a regular basis 
and be used to publicise the integration of social value in the Lancashire Growth 
Deal programme through various channels e.g. website and social media.  The 
committee is asked to comment on the dashboard.

3.3 It is important to continue gathering case studies for the Social Value toolkit, to 
provide tangible examples for project applicants.  It is recommended that social 
value be integrated within the broader evaluation of the Growth Deal 
programme, and that case studies are produced for insertion into the toolkit.

Page 218

http://www.lancashirelep.co.uk/lep-priorities/growth-deal/social-value.aspx


Projects committed to 
delivering Social Value 

Lancashire’s Growth Deal 
Social Value Performance 

73%

Business Volunteers supporting 
academic institutions in curriculum 
development, careers information 
& education 

221
Number of Graduate placements, 
internships & work experience 
placements

103

Employment opportunities for 
disadvantaged Lancashire residents 

22
Number of apprenticeships

182

Workforce planning and investment 
training employees 

130
Procurement and commissioning of local 
SME's, Social enterprises, and third 
sector organisations 

48

TOTAL TO DATE

TOTAL TO DATE

TOTAL TO DATE

TOTAL TO DATE

TOTAL TO DATE

TOTAL TO DATE

Reflects performance up to 31st March 2017lancashirelep.co.uk

Page 219



Page 220


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 07 June 2017
	5 Growth Deal - 1st Interim Evaluation Report
	6 Growth Deal Revised Communications Protocol
	Appendix A

	7 AMRC NW Project Appraisal Report
	Appendix A
	Appendix B

	8 Broughton Bypass
	9 M55 to Heyhouses Link Road update
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C

	10 Preston Western Distributor
	Appendix A
	Appendix B1
	Appendix B2
	Appendix C

	12 Programme and Projects Update
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C

	13 Finance Update
	Appendix A

	15 Amendments to the Core Grant Funding Agreement
	Appendix A

	16 Social Value
	Appendix A


